
Lapeer City Commission Agenda 
February 20, 2024 

Page 1

AGENDA 
CITY OF LAPEER 

CITY COMMISSION 
576 LIBERTY PARK, LAPEER, MI 48446 

FERUARY 20, 2024 

6:30 P.M. CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 20, 2024, AGENDA 

A. MINUTES:
1. Minutes of the Regular meeting held February 5, 2024.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
1. Lapeer County Commissioner - Brad Haggadone.
2. Public Comment received regarding Bike Night.

C. CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Special Event:  Friends Helping Friends – East Farmers Market, Tractor Supply Co.,

Saturdays, April 13, 2024, through December 28, 2024.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Approve the Consent Agenda for February 20, 2024.

D. BILL LISTING:
1. Bill Listing for February 20, 2024.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Approve the Bill Listing for February 20, 2024, in the amount of $1,609,528.79.

E. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS:

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
None.

G. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS:
1. Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 15 (Elections).

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Adopt an ordinance amendment to Chapter 15 (Elections) § 15-1 Territory included in
each precinct, of the General Ordinances of the City of Lapeer.

2. Lapeer Optimist Club – Beer Tent Resolution.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Adopt the resolution to authorize the Lapeer Optimist Club to use the city sidewalks and
Cedar Street north of Nepessing Street for their beer tent on Friday, August 16, 2024,
through Sunday, August 18, 2024, for Lapeer Days.



Lapeer City Commission Agenda 
February 20, 2024 

Page 2

3. M-24 Tunnel Connection TAP Grant Resolution.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Adopt the resolution supporting the M-24 Tunnel Connection Project.

H. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:
1. Ribbon Policy – Discussion.
2. Special Event Applications:

a) Chamber of Commerce - Food Truck Festival.
b) Chamber of Commerce – Fireworks.
c) Chamber of Commerce - Lapeer Days.
d) Kiwanis - Rubber Duck Dash.
e) Kiwanis - Fantasy Forest.
f) Chamber of Commerce - Christmas Parade.
g) Popovich Holdings Inc. - Friday Night Bikes.
h) Steel Patriots Motorcycle Club  - Friday Night Bikes.

3. Various matters.

I. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
1. None.

J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
1. Appointments to Boards and Commissions.

a) Re-appointment to Cemetery Board - Mike Robinet.
b) Appointment to Board of Review - Didrik Krogh.

K. DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATIONS:
1. Monthly Departmental Reports.

L. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

M. CLOSING COMMENTS:
1. Commissioners.
2. City Manager.
3. Mayor.

N. REMINDER OF MEETINGS:
Next City Commission Meeting: MONDAY, MARCH 4, 2024, Regular

O. REMINDER OF PUBLIC HEARINGS:

ADJOURNMENT

MATERIAL TRANSMITTAL

Notice:   
Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation through electronic means in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (810) 664-5231 or by email at clerk@ci.lapeer.mi.us at least two working days in advance 
of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 5, 2024 

Page 1 
 

LAPEER CITY COMMISSION 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 

FEBRUARY 5, 2024 
 

A regular meeting of the Lapeer City Commission was held February 5, 2024, at the Lapeer 
City Hall, 576 Liberty Park, Lapeer, Michigan.  The meeting was called to order at 6:35 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Present: Mayor Marquardt. 
 Commissioners:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Absent: None. 
 
City Manager:  Mike Womack, present. 
 
Mayor Marquardt led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
20 2024 02-05  AGENDA APPROVAL 
Moved by Petrie.  Seconded by Brady. 
Approve the Agenda for February 5, 2024, with the removal of Item C-2 Permanent Water & 
Sewer Line Easements – L21-39-831-032-00; L21-39-831-032-40 and L21-39-831-032-60 
from the consent agenda and moving it to Item G-4 for discission purposes. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
21 2024 02-05  MINUTES 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Approve the minutes of the regular meeting held January 16, 2024, the closed session held 
January 16, 2024, and the special meeting held January 27, 2024, as presented. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Jessica Harold spoke about Bike Night.  
 
Carol Brown, Mayfield Township, gave an invocation and is in favor of Bike Night.  
 
Neda Payne, Chamber of Commerce, spoke about the four special events on tonight’s agenda 
that are held annually.   
 
Twenty people spoke in favor of Friday Night Bikes.  Additionally the City Clerk’s office received 
25 public comments in favor of the event, as well as three (3) public comments against the 
event.    
 
Patrick Hingst spoke against Bike Night.   
 
Scott Jankovic, owner of Vinyl Bar & Grill, would like the DDA to take over the Bike Night event. 
 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 5, 2024 

Page 2 
 

Jeanette Osentoski spoke about Bike Night. 
 
Tony Stroh commented on the Special Event Policy.   
 
Chris Jadach spoke about the last commission meeting. 
 
22 2024 02-05  CONSENT AGENDA 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Atwood. 
Approve the consent agenda for February 5, 2024, as presented: 
 1. Traffic Control Order # 310. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
23 2024 02-05  BILL LISTING 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Petrie. 
Approve the bill listing for February 5, 2024, in the amount of $4,251,346.32. 
ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PROCLAMATION, RECOGNITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS: 
None.  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
24 2024 02-05  CHARITABLE GAMING LICENSE – CITY OF LAPEER POLICE 
OFFICERS CHARITABLE FUND (LCPOCF) 
Moved by Swindell.  Seconded by Glisman. 
Adopt the Local Governing Body Resolution for Charitable Gaming Licenses for the City of 
Lapeer Police Officers Charitable Fund (LCPOCF). 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
25 2024 02-05  ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – CHAPTER 8 (PROPERTY 
MAINTENANCE CODE) 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Atwood. 
Adopt an ordinance amendment to Chapter 8 (Property Maintenance Code) Article VII, of the 
General Ordinances of the City of Lapeer.  
 

CITY OF LAPEER 
LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

Ordinance #: 2024-01 
 

An ordinance to amend City of Lapeer elections ordinance by amending Chapter 8, Article VII 
Property Maintenance Code. 
THE CITY OF LAPEER, LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN ORDAINS: 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 5, 2024 

Page 3 
 

ARTICLE I.  
 

That Ordinance § 8-44 Code Adopted is amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

§ 8-44 Code adopted. 

The International Property Maintenance Code® (IPMC®) establishes minimum requirements 
for the maintenance of existing buildings through model code regulations that contain clear and 
specific property maintenance and property improvement provisions. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, there is hereby adopted by reference the 2021 
Edition of the International Property Maintenance Code, with the following insertions: 
 
 Section 101.1 Insert “City of Lapeer” 
 Section 103.1 Insert “Property Maintenance Department” 
 Section 302.4 Insert “eight (8) inches” 
 Section 304.14 Insert April First (1st) to November First (1st) 
 Section 602.3 Insert January First (1st) to December Thirty-First (31st) 
 Section 602.4 Insert January First (1st) to December Thirty-First (31st) 
 
ARTICLE II. SEVERABILITY  
This ordinance and its various articles, paragraphs and clauses thereof are hereby declared to 
be severable. If any article, paragraph or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, the 
remainder of this amendatory ordinance shall not be affected thereby.  
ARTICLE III. CONFLICT 
All ordinances and provisions of ordinances of the City of Lapeer in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
ARTICLE IV. ADOPTION 
This amendatory ordinance shall be published as required by law and shall take effect after 
publication. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Swindell. 
Nays:  Petrie. 
MOTION CARRIED 4-1. 
 
26 2024 02-05  ORDINANCE AMENDMENT – CHAPTER 15 (ELECTIONS) 
Moved by Brady. Seconded by Atwood. 
To introduce an ordinance amendment to Chapter 15 (Elections) § 15-1 Territory included in each 
precinct, of the General Ordinances of the City of Lapeer.  

CITY OF LAPEER 
LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

Ordinance #: 2024-02 
 

An ordinance to amend City of Lapeer elections ordinance by amending § 15-1 Territory 
included in each precinct. 
 
THE CITY OF LAPEER, LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN ORDAINS: 

https://ecode360.com/34119497#34119498


 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 5, 2024 

Page 4 
 

 
ARTICLE I.  
 
That Ordinance § 15-1Territory included in each precinct is amended to read in its 
entirety as follows: 
 
§ 15-1 Territory included in each precinct. 
 
Hereafter there shall be two election precincts in the City of Lapeer. 
 

A. Precinct Number One shall include all area north of Genesee Street and west of Fox 
Street extending  to Biddle Street; west of Biddle Street to Cedar Street; west of Cedar 
Street to Second Street; south of Second street to Main Street; and west of Main Street 
to end of City Limits. 

 
B. Precinct Number Two shall include all area east of Main Street north of Second Street; 

and all areas east of Cedar Street extended to Biddle Street; east of Biddle Street to 
Fox Street; east of Fox street to Genesee Street to end of City Limits; and all area 
south of Genesee Street to end of City Limits. 

 
ARTICLE II. SEVERABILITY  
This ordinance and its various articles, paragraphs and clauses thereof are hereby declared to 
be severable. If any article, paragraph or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, the 
remainder of this amendatory ordinance shall not be affected thereby.  
ARTICLE III. CONFLICT 
All ordinances and provisions of ordinances of the City of Lapeer in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
ARTICLE IV. ADOPTION 
This amendatory ordinance shall be published as required by law and shall take effect after 
publication. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
27 2024 02-05  PERMANENT WATER & SEWER LINE EASEMENTS – L21-39-
831-032-00; L21-39-831-032-40  AND L21-39-831-032-60. 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Atwood. 
Approve the Permanent Water & Sewer Line Easements – L-21-39-831-032-00; L21-39-831-
032-40 and L21-39-831-032-60.    
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
City Manager Womack asked the City Commission to provide him with policy direction on the 
current  Special Event Application policy as well as the actual Special Event Application itself.  
Currently, the policy reads that for-profit events must pay 100% of all City costs associated with 
the event.  The policy should be applied fairly and equally to all.  However, it appears that past 
practice has been that the City pays for all costs associated with any Special Event, which 
causes a conflict between current policy and past practice.    



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 5, 2024 

Page 5 
 

 
City Commissioners held a discussion on the current policy for the Special Event Applications.  
Commissioners Brady, Glisman, and Petrie are in favor of the current policy, Commissioner 
Swindell stated the policy needs updating.  The discussion continued about the fees that can 
be charged to City Sponsored Events, Co-Sponsored Events, Non-Profit Events and For-Profit 
events and the cost associated with the various types of events.  It was the consensus of the 
group to update the application and follow the current policy.    
 
City Manager Womack asked the Commission to provide him with policy direction on the 
proposed Community Center Policy Changes which include requiring all single visit users to 
show identification and create a user profile to use the facility and to increase the minimum age 
children can use the facility unsupervised. The current policy allows children to be 10+ years 
old to be in the building without supervision. It was the consensus to move forward with the 
suggested changes and provide the commission with a policy at a future meeting for 
consideration.   
 
City Manager Womack asked the Commission to provide him direction on the design concept 
for Parking Lot #5 .  The City Engineer stated there are two options for consideration for the 
parking lot, one being to overlay the existing lot, which is not recommended and would be at a 
cost of approximately $180,000 or the second option is to completely overhaul the lot, which 
will cost approximately $700,000.  Commissioners asked questions of the City Engineer about 
the design and cost options associated with this parking lot.  It was the consensus of the 
commission to have the parking lot completely redone.  
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
None. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
28 2024 02-05  APPOINTMENT TO DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Moved by Mayor Marquardt. Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Glisman. 
To appoint Christopher Herr to the Downtown Development Authority for a term to expire 
January 1, 2027. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
29 2024 02-05  APPOINTMENT TO EDC/TIFA/ BROWNFEILD 
REDEVELOPMENT  
Moved by Mayor Marquardt. Moved by Swindell.  Seconded by Glisman. 
To re-appoint William Marquardt to Economic Development Corporation, Tax Increment 
Finance Authority, Brownfield Redevelopment Authority for a term to expire March 1, 2030. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
30 2024 02-05  RESIGNATION FROM LAPEER HOUSING COMMISSION, 
LAPEER – HOUSING BOARD OF APPEALS AND LAPEER NEIGHBORHOODS, INC.  
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Petrie. 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 5, 2024 

Page 6 
 

Accept the resignation of Jennell RaCosta from Lapeer Housing Commission, Lapeer – 
Housing Board of Appeals and Lapeer Neighborhoods, Inc. and declare the seats vacant. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
31 2024 02-05  APPOINTMENT TO LAPEER HOUSING COMMISSION, LAPEER 
– HOUSING BOARD OF APPEALS AND LAPEER NEIGHBORHOODS, INC.  
Moved by Mayor Marquardt. Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Petrie. 
To appoint Brad Chayka to the Lapeer Housing Commission for a term to expire August 1, 
2027; Lapeer – Housing Board of Appeals for a term to expire May 1, 2024, and Lapeer 
Neighborhoods, Inc.  for a term to expire August 1, 2024.  
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
The DDA Monthly Departmental Report, Planning Commission 2023 Annual Report, Quarterly 
Financial Report, Quarterly Investment Reports, and Planning Commission Recommendation 
– Marihuana Grow Facilities were received into the record, as presented.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Jeanette Osentoski commented on parking lot #5. 
 
Neda Payne commented about non-profits paying half of the costs for events.  
 
MAYOR/COMMISSIONER COMMENTS  
Commissioner Swindell:  Happy to see so many people here at the meeting tonight.  The 
Chamber of Commerce and DDA did send surveys to business owners, however not many 
were returned. Likes the bioswale idea at the river.  The farmers market needs to be non-profit 
in order to build a pavilion for them.  Thanked Brad Chayka for volunteering to serve on three 
different boards.  Thanked all the other volunteers.        
 
Commissioner Petrie:  Grateful for all those who appeared here tonight; however, to hold Bike 
Night every Friday night is a bit much and we need to think about that, as other groups might 
like to have an event on a Friday as well.  Would like to see the fences mended between the 
business owners in the downtown; wants to bring peace and unity to the community.  Asked 
the Mayor and City Manager for information about renegotiating the City Attorney’s contract so 
that the City Attorney is here at every meeting and would like on an upcoming meeting agenda.   
  
Commissioner Brady:  Asked if there was an action necessary regarding the departmental 
communication from the Planning Commission regarding the marihuana grow facilities.  
 
Commissioner Glisman:  Spoke about the Special Meeting held on January 27, 2024, at the 
Train Depot; was very informative.  Looking for an amicable conclusion to Bike Night; wants it 
to be fair for all people.  Sorry to hear about the fire and glad everyone was safe.  Happy 
Valentine’s Day. The Refuge will be holding a fund-raiser in April.  
 



 

Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 5, 2024 

Page 7 
 

Commissioner Atwood:  There is a false narrative that the city is anti-bikes, anti-non-profit, and 
anti-other things, when really, we are just trying to do our jobs as elected officials.  There are 
meaningful conversations that need to take place.  We have a large downtown with businesses 
that want events, while others do not.  We need to work for the common good of everyone.  
Does not want to see division between the organizations.  Would recommend that the DDA 
and City Manager have a meeting to look for a solution to this event;  maybe this event can be 
taken over by a non-profit organization. 
 
City Manager Womack:  There is a fracture in the business community and would like to see 
the DDA take over Bike Night.  We want the city to be better. 
 
Mayor Marquardt: Read the list of local events.  Gave an explanation on why the DDA no longer 
hosts the event.  Thanks to everyone who was here tonight.   
 
32 2024 02-05  ADJOURNMENT 
Having no further business, Mayor Marquardt adjourned the regular meeting at 9:32 p.m.   
 
 
              
Debbie Marquardt, Mayor     Romona Sanchez, City Clerk 



From: Jack McLer
To: manager; Clerk Department; savelepeerbikenights@proton.me
Subject: Lapeer Bike night.
Date: Monday, February 12, 2024 1:05:36 PM

To whom it may concern,

I can't imagine canceling or compromising lapeer's bike night.

Obviously it's very popular as there are many attendants spending money in downtown
Lapeer.

I strongly disagree with changing or compromising Lapeer bike night in any way.

It is an amazing group of people, family friendly and respectful.

I can't imagine a business or restaurant turning away the money that bike night brings to their
businesses. However if they don't want to participate they don't have to. They can just close
their business during bike night hours.

Thank you so much,
Jack McLeroth

mailto:Jackmcl@usa.com
mailto:manager@ci.lapeer.mi.us
mailto:clerk@ci.lapeer.mi.us
mailto:savelepeerbikenights@proton.me


From: Jack McLer
To: Clerk Department; manager
Subject: Fwd: Lapeer Bike night.
Date: Monday, February 12, 2024 6:36:41 PM

On 2/12/24, 1:05 PM Jack McLer <Jackmcl@usa.com> wrote:

To whom it may concern, 

I can't imagine canceling or compromising lapeer's bike night. 

Obviously it's very popular as there are many attendants spending money in downtown
Lapeer. 

I strongly disagree with changing or compromising Lapeer bike night in any way. 

It is an amazing group of people, family friendly and respectful. 

I can't imagine a business or restaurant turning away the money that bike night brings to
their businesses. However if they don't want to participate they don't have to. They can just
close their business during bike night hours. 

Thank you so much, 
Jack McLeroth

mailto:Jackmcl@usa.com
mailto:clerk@ci.lapeer.mi.us
mailto:manager@ci.lapeer.mi.us


ITEM C-1 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: January 25, 2024 
RE: Special Event – East Lapeer Farmers Market 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the event. Insurance required. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
Friends helping Friends Inc. would like to have a weekly event at the TSC located at 1203 Imlay 
City Rd.  The event is named, “East Lapeer Farmers Market.”  This event is not located on city 
owned property.  The organizer, Kathy Stine, is requesting that every Saturday starting on April 
13,  2024,  and ending December 28, 2024, from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. they host a farmers market 
event in the parking lot of TSC.  They expect about 20 vendors to participate.     

This event does not require any additional city services. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
This appears to be the events first time as special event.  Kathy Stine, the organizer, advised 
in the application that this would be annual going into 2025.  

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: February 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 26, 2024 
Consent: X 

 Administrative:  Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 

















ITEM D-1   

 

To: Mayor and City Commission 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date: February 14, 2024 
RE: Bill Listing – February 2, 2024, through February 15, 2024 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the bill listing as presented. 

 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
I, Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services, have reviewed the bills for February 2, 2024, through 
February 15, 2024,  in the total amount of $1,609,528.79 and find them to be proper charges. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 14, 2024 
 Consent: 
 Administrative:  Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
 
S:\City Logo\City Logo 2022\Templates\Interoffice Memo\Interoffice Memo - AGENDA.docx 



                                                 CHECK REGISTER FOR THE CITY OF LAPEER                                                        
                                              CHECK DATE FROM 02/02/2024 - 02/15/2024                                              

Check Date Check Vendor Name Amount

02/15/2024 597467 LAPEER COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 845,696.76
02/15/2024 597465 LAPEER CO TREASURER 228,882.83
02/15/2024 597463 LAPEER CO INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 195,318.92
02/15/2024 1946(E) BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD OF MI 68,246.39
02/15/2024 597468 LAPEER DISTRICT LIBRARY 60,338.90
02/15/2024 597476 MOTOROLA 28,582.53
02/15/2024 597454 GREATER LAPEER TRANS AUTH 16,860.32
02/15/2024 597448 CRAWLSPACE REMEDIATION LLC 16,100.00
02/15/2024 1948(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY 12,569.69
02/15/2024 597493 U.S. POSTMASTER 10,000.00
02/15/2024 1909(A) ABM COMMERCIAL CLEANING, LLC 7,580.00
02/15/2024 1944(A) WINDER POLICE EQUIPMENT INC 6,950.63
02/15/2024 1943(A) WEX BANK 6,940.90
02/15/2024 1937(A) ROWE INC 6,599.75
02/15/2024 1914(A) DEE CRAMER 6,359.91
02/15/2024 1920(A) HAVILAND PRODUCTS COMPANY 5,282.25
02/15/2024 597451 ETNA SUPPLY 5,265.00
02/15/2024 597496 WAGNER BROTHERS SERVICES 5,250.00
02/15/2024 1942(A) VC3, INC. 4,221.75
02/15/2024 1947(E) CITY OF LAPEER 3,742.86
02/15/2024 597475 MLR ENGINEERING 3,700.00
02/15/2024 1915(A) EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY 3,500.00
02/15/2024 597487 THE ROSSOW GROUP 3,500.00
02/15/2024 1923(A) LEGACY ASSESSING SERVICES INC 3,400.00
02/15/2024 597466 LAPEER CO TREASURER 3,330.00
02/15/2024 1922(A) K & R TRUCK SALES, INC. 3,081.84
02/15/2024 1935(A) PRO COMM INC. 2,614.68
02/15/2024 597485 T. P. ISRAEL CO INC 2,400.00
02/15/2024 1912(A) CORRIGAN OIL II, INC. 2,296.82
02/15/2024 1940(A) SPICER GROUP 2,258.50
02/15/2024 597449 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 2,209.89
02/15/2024 1932(A) PARAGON LABORATORIES, INC. 2,136.00
02/15/2024 1921(A) HYDRO CORP 1,989.50
02/15/2024 597473 MGS ELECTRIC INC. 1,930.00
02/15/2024 1925(A) MAUK, JODI 1,807.70
02/15/2024 1939(A) SMITH, SHANNON 1,807.70
02/15/2024 597479 PRINTING SYSTEMS 1,706.02
02/15/2024 1945(A) WSP USA ENVIR. & INFRASTRUCTURE INC 1,464.00
02/15/2024 597491 TRW LANDSCAPES LLC 1,370.00
02/15/2024 1950(E) METROPOLITAN LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 1,327.70
02/15/2024 597490 TOWN & COUNTRY POOLS, INC 1,245.00
02/15/2024 597495 VILLAGE PRINTING 1,210.00



02/15/2024 597457 JACK DOHENY SUPPLIES INC 1,170.40
02/15/2024 1941(A) TAYLOR, SARAH 1,000.00
02/15/2024 1916(A) EUROFINS ENVIRONMENT TESTING 902.50
02/15/2024 597497 WELLS FARGO REAL ESTATE TAX SERVICE 899.19
02/15/2024 597471 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 882.79
02/15/2024 1913(A) CRUISERS, INC 864.76
02/15/2024 597459 KARMA ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS LLC 750.00
02/15/2024 597489 TIMBERGATE CONSTRUCTION 750.00
02/15/2024 597492 U.S. POSTMASTER 700.00
02/15/2024 1911(A) BIG WATER TECHNOLOGIES CORP 690.00
02/15/2024 1919(A) FLUSHING URGENT CARE PLC 645.00
02/15/2024 597456 IN-HOUSE SOLUTIONS, LLC 600.00
02/15/2024 597444 CASCADE SPRINKLER INSPECTION 550.00
02/15/2024 1936(A) RICK RHEIN DISPOSAL 472.00
02/15/2024 597494 VIEW NEWSPAPERS 447.80
02/15/2024 597488 THE WILKINSON CORP. 437.00
02/15/2024 597442 BLACKHAWK SECURITY 425.00
02/15/2024 1926(A) MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL SERVICES 400.15
02/15/2024 597458 JAY'S SEPTIC 390.00
02/15/2024 597460 KONIECZKA HEATING & COOLING, INC 343.00
02/15/2024 597450 ECKER MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS, INC 300.00
02/15/2024 597484 STATE OF MICHIGAN 274.00
02/15/2024 597483 SHIRLEY'S DRY CLEAN. & ALTERATIONS 263.20
02/15/2024 597462 LAPEER CO HEALTH DEPT 260.00
02/15/2024 1931(A) ON DUTY GEAR, LLC 251.98
02/15/2024 597447 CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY 250.00
02/15/2024 1934(A) PREMIER SAFETY 243.08
02/15/2024 1917(A) FASTENAL COMPANY 222.81
02/15/2024 1929(A) MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES, INC 210.00
02/15/2024 597472 MATRIX BASEMENT SYSTEMS 200.00
02/15/2024 1924(A) LEXIPOL, LLC 191.78
02/15/2024 1910(A) AMERICAN VIDEO TRANSFER INC 190.58
02/15/2024 1928(A) MEI TOTAL ELEVATOR SOLUTIONS 180.47
02/02/2024 597440 POSTMASTER 162.61
02/15/2024 597474 MI STATE FIREMEN'S ASSOC 130.37
02/15/2024 597452 FIRST ADVANTAGE LNS 120.35
02/15/2024 1949(E) INVOICE CLOUD 115.00
02/15/2024 1938(A) SHORELINE INVESTMENT SERV. INC. 108.95
02/15/2024 597453 GRAINGER 104.00
02/15/2024 597441 ALLIED SIGNS, INC 100.00
02/15/2024 597443 CAPITOL SUPPLY &  SERVICE, INC 100.00
02/15/2024 597446 CONLON INSTALLATIONS INC 100.00
02/15/2024 597455 HOLLAND HEATING & COOLING, INC 100.00
02/15/2024 597469 LG ELECTRIC 100.00
02/15/2024 597477 MRJ SIGN COMPANY, LLC 100.00
02/15/2024 597481 RHB ELECTRIC, INC 100.00
02/15/2024 597482 SD ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING LLC 100.00



02/15/2024 1930(A) NYE UNIFORM CO 97.84
02/15/2024 1933(A) PAYETTE SALES & SERVICE INC. 90.90
02/15/2024 1918(A) FLINT WELDING SUPPLY CO 81.25
02/15/2024 597486 THE COUNTY PRESS 65.00
02/15/2024 597480 REGIONAL MEDICAL IMAGING, PC 60.00
02/15/2024 597461 LAPEER CO DRAIN COMMISSION 45.34
02/15/2024 597478 NURENBERG, AUNDREA 28.00
02/15/2024 597464 LAPEER CO MUNICIPAL CLERK'S ASSOC 25.00
02/15/2024 597470 MACOMB ASSESSORS ORGANIZATION 25.00
02/15/2024 597445 CITY OF LAPEER 22.92
02/15/2024 1927(A) MCLEAN, ALEXANDRIA 10.85
02/15/2024 1951(E) STATE OF MICHIGAN 3.18

TOTAL $1,609,528.79



ITEM G-1 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\02-20-24 Regular\G-1 Ord Amend Ch 15-Adopt.docx 
 

To: Mayor and City Commissioners  
From: Mike Womack, City Manager 
Date: January 25, 2024 
RE: Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 15 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To adopt an ordinance amendment to Chapter 15 Elections, §15-1 Territory included in each precinct.  
 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
With the passage of Proposal 2022-2, there are a significant number of changes to the way communities 
conduct elections in the State of Michigan.  Beginning with the Presidential Primary, which is scheduled 
for February 27, 2024, voters now have the option of voting in person at an early voting site for nine 
consecutive days beginning on the second Saturday before the election.  Voters still have the option to 
vote by absentee ballot or at their polling location on election day.  
 
Additionally, Act No. 88 Public Acts of 2023 increased precinct size.  Prior to this act each voting precinct 
was to have no more than 2,999 registered voters per precinct; however, the number of registered 
voters has increased to 4,999 per precinct.   
 
Precinct boundaries are governed under Michigan Election Law, MCL 168-654.66, and can only be 
approved by the local Election Commission.  The City of Lapeer Election Commission met on November 
27, 2023, and adopted Resolution #2023-01 Approving Changes in Boundaries for Voting Precincts, 
which approved the previous #1 and #2 Precincts to be combined to become the new Precinct #1, and 
the precious Precincts #3 and #4 to be combined to become the new Precinct #2.   
 
Both polling locations will remain the same, Precinct #1 is at Trinity United Methodist Church, 1310 N. 
Main Street, and Precinct #2 is at Calvary Bible Church, 923 S Main Street.   
 
Consolidation of these precincts will ultimately be a cost savings for the city.  For example, we will not 
need as many election workers, there will be less equipment needed and less maintenance costs.  
 
Currently, Chapter 15 Elections, Article I Precincts states “§ 15-1Territory included in each precinct.  
Hereafter, there shall be four election Precincts in the City of Lapeer”, and details the boundaries for 
the four precincts. This amendment will modify § 15-1Territory included... to two election precincts.   
 
 
BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION  
The City of Lapeer has had four voting precincts since 1996.   
 
 
AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 25, 2024 
 Consent:  
Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
Public Hearing:  
 

https://ecode360.com/33200755#33200755
https://ecode360.com/33200755#33200755


 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CITY OF LAPEER 
LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

Ordinance #: 2024-02 
 

An ordinance to amend City of Lapeer elections ordinance by amending § 15-1 Territory included 
in each precinct. 

THE CITY OF LAPEER, LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN ORDAINS: 

ARTICLE I.  
That Ordinance § 15-1Territory included in each precinct is amended to read in its entirety 
as follows: 
 
§ 15-1 Territory included in each precinct. 
 
Hereafter there shall be two election precincts in the City of Lapeer. 
 

A. Precinct Number One shall include all area north of Genesee Street and west of Fox Street 
extending  to Biddle Street; west of Biddle Street to Cedar Street; west of Cedar Street to 
Second Street; south of Second street to Main Street; and west of Main Street to end of 
City Limits. 

 
B. Precinct Number Two shall include all area east of Main Street north of Second Street; 

and all areas east of Cedar Street extended to Biddle Street; east of Biddle Street to Fox 
Street; east of Fox street to Genesee Street to end of City Limits; and all area south of 
Genesee Street to end of City Limits. 

 
ARTICLE II. SEVERABILITY  
This ordinance and its various articles, paragraphs and clauses thereof are hereby declared to be 
severable. If any article, paragraph or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder 
of this amendatory ordinance shall not be affected thereby.  
ARTICLE III. CONFLICT 
All ordinances and provisions of ordinances of the City of Lapeer in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  

ARTICLE IV. ADOPTION 
This amendatory ordinance shall be published as required by law and shall take effect after 
publication. 

CERTIFICATION 
The foregoing ordinance is hereby certified to be the authentic record of the ordinance which was 
duly adopted by the City Commission of the City of Lapeer on the ____________ 2024, and 
published on the _________________, 2024. 

YEAS:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) ) SS  
COUNTY OF LAPEER )  
I, the undersigned, the fully qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Lapeer, Lapeer County, 
Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete Copy of an ordinance 
adopted at a regular meeting of the City Commission of the City of Lapeer, Michigan, held on the 
______________, 2024, the original of said meeting was given to and in compliance with Act 267, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976.  
 
I further certify that on the ______________, 2024, I caused a notice of such adoption to be 
published in the County Press, a newspaper circulated in the City of Lapeer, and that said 
Ordinance and the record of publication was duly recorded in the Municipal Code of the City of 
Lapeer and is available for public use and inspection at the offices of the City of Lapeer Clerk.  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto fixed my official signature on this ___________, 2024.  
 
 ___________________________________  
Romana Sanchez, City Clerk  
City of Lapeer 



ITEM G-2 

 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Romona Sanchez, City Clerk 
Date: February 8, 2024 
RE: Optimist Beer Tent Resolution 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt the resolution to authorize the Lapeer Optimist Club to use the City sidewalks and Cedar 
Street north of Nepessing Street for their beer tent on Friday, August 16, 2024, through Sunday, 
August 18, 2024, be approved. 
 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
The Optimist Club has requested a resolution from the City of Lapeer, in order to obtain their 
liquor license, permit from Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA), 
Liquor Control Commission for their beer tent during the Lapeer Days Festival. 

 
 
BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION  
 
Annual Event. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 14, 2024 
 Consent: 
Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
Public Hearing: 
 
S:\City Logo\City Logo 2021\Templates\Interoffice Memo\Interoffice Memo - AGENDA.docx 



CITY OF LALPEER 
RESOLUTION # 2024-01 

Lapeer Optimist Club 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
Moved by Commissioner                     and supported by Commissioner                    that 
the request to authorize the Lapeer Optimist Club to use the city sidewalks and Cedar 
Street north of Nepessing Street for their beer tent on Friday, August 16, 2024, through 
Sunday, August 18, 2024, be approved. 
 

  APPROVAL    DISAPPROAL 
Ayes:  Commissioners   Ayes:   

       
Nays:    Nays:   

       
Absent:    Absent:   

       
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the request be approved by the State of 
Michigan, Department of Consumer & Industry Services, Liquor Control Commission. 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution 
duly adopted by the City Commission of the City of Lapeer, County of Lapeer, Michigan 
at a regular meeting held on February 20, 2024, and that public notice of said meeting 
was given pursuant to and in full conformity with Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1976, as amended. 
 
CITY SEAL            
       Romona Sanchez, CMC 

City Clerk, City of Lapeer 
       576 Liberty Park 
       Lapeer, Michigan 48446 



ITEM G-3 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\02-20-24 Regular\02-20-24 Back Up\CC Agenda Memo - M-24 Tunnel Connection - 
TAP Grant Resolution.docx 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Rodney Church, Director of Parks, Recreation and Cemetery 
Date: February 14, 2024 
RE: Resolution – TAP Grant for the M-24 Tunnel Connection Project 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To adopt the resolution supporting the M-24 Tunnel Connection Project. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
The City is working with ROWE Engineering on a TAP (Transportation Alternatives Program) Grant to 
help pay for the project. The proposed project is to construct a switch back trail on the west side of M-
24 that will connect to the tunnel and extend east into Cramton Park. An asphalt pathway coming out 
east of the tunnel will connect to the existing Kiwanis Bridge over Farmers Creek and connect north to 
the existing pathway on the north side of the playground. The M-24 Underpass Trail Connection is a 
key east-west link in the walkability development of Lapeer. If awarded the TAP Grant will cover 80% 
of the construction costs. The city’s share (20%) and engineering will be paid for out of TIFA 2 & 3 
funds. This project has been in the works since 2015 and is currently in the Capital Improvement Plan 
Project # 91580 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
None.  

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 14, 2024 
Consent:  

Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
Public Hearing:  



CITY OF LAPEER 
RESOLUTION #2024-03 

M-24 TUNNELL CONNECTION 
TAP GRANT RESOLUTION

At a regular meeting of the Lapeer City Commission of the City of Lapeer, Lapeer 
County, Michigan, held at Lapeer City Hall on February 20, 2024, there were: 

PRESENT: Mayor Marquardt.  Commissioners Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, 
Swindell. 

ABSENT: None. 

MOVED BY:  Commissioner . SECONDED BY: Commissioner . 

WHEREAS, the Lapeer City Commission is in support of the non-motorized pathway project known as 
the M-24 Tunnel Connector project, to provide an ADA accessible means of travel from the west side of 
M-24 to the east side M-24 at the Farmer’s Creek bridge utilizing the existing pedestrian tunnel
constructed in 2015; and

WHEREAS, in addition to the funds that the City of Lapeer has expended in required property acquisition 
and preliminary engineering; and  

WHEREAS, the city is prepared to expend all costs related to design engineering, construction 
engineering, and the 20% share of the construction costs, currently estimated at $165,000 for 
engineering, and $116,000 (local share) for construction; and   

WHEREAS, the Director of Parks, Recreation, and Cemetery Rodney Church shall be the administrative 
official designated to act as the agent/representative on behalf of the City of Lapeer during project 
development, and to sign a project agreement (contract) upon receipt of a grant funding Award; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Lapeer shall commit to owning/operating the constructed facility and 
funding/implementing a maintenance plan/program in perpetuity or causing operations and maintenance 
to occur. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Lapeer shall be responsible for engineering, 
permits, administration, potential cost overruns, and any non-participating items. 

This resolution was adopted on this 20th day of February 2024. 

YEAS:   
NAYS:  
MOTION CARRIED. RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CERTIFICATION: 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
Lapeer City Commission, County of Lapeer, Michigan at a regular meeting held on  February 20, 2024,, 
in compliance with the Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of 1967. 

________________________ 
Romona Sanchez, CMC 
City Clerk, City of Lapeer 



w
w

w
.
r
o

w
e

p
s
c
.
c
o

m

1
2

8
 
N

.
 
S

a
g

i
n

a
w

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

L
a

p
e

e
r
,
 
M

I
 
4

8
4

4
6

O
:
 
(
8

1
0

)
 
6

6
4

-
9

4
1

1

F
:
 
(
8

1
0

)
 
6

6
4

-
3

4
5

1

R
P
R

S
E

C
O

O
W
E

O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L

R
V
I
C
E
S

M
P
A
N
Y

M
-
2
4
 
A

N
D

 
F

A
R

M
E

R
S

 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
L
A

P
E

E
R

 
M

I
,
 
4
8
4
4
6

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

1 15

EGLE
WRP039147 v1.0

Approved
Issued On:10/03/2023

Expires On:10/03/2028

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED M-24 UNDERPASS CONNECTION PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAMTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-69

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURRILL RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILGRIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRANBROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLONIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTBROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIRKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINGSWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUNCREST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTBROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALDWIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAPEER   (M-24)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUNTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENESEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HICKORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOLL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERTOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOURTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MADISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONROE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HURON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. CLAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHIGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIBERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLEASANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONROE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACKSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACKSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIBERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMOREAUX

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEWEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FARMERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAND   TRUNK   WESTERN   RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENTLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARTLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEPPERMILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MC MCCORMICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGINAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGINAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGINAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LYLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAGLE PASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOCKINGBIRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAVEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NIGHTINGALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIDDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEPESSING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGINAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASON

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGGINS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALHOUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENESEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENTLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURRILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANADIAN NATIONAL  RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLANS FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
"B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINCOLN

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOHL'S

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEIJER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARTHA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANSFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVONSHIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHISPER RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDFLOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLING HILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLF VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMPSHIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEMILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENS WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILLVILLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE NEPESSING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLING HILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know what's below.  below. below.    Call before you dig.Call before you dig. before you dig.before you dig.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U       SHEET INDEX       

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SCOPE PROPOSED CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING BOX CULVERT TUNNEL UNDER M-24 FOR PEDESTRIAN UNDERPASS. WEST SIDE: CONCRETE TRAILWAY SWITCHBACK RAMP FROM WEST END OF TUNNEL TO EXISTING SIDEWALK ALONG THE WEST SIDE OF M-24. EAST SIDE: CONCRETE APPROACH RAMP FROM EAST OF TUNNEL TO EXISTING GRADE WITHIN CRAMTON PARK. A PROPOSED HMA TRAILWAY WILL BEGIN AT THE EAST END OF THE APPROACH AND WILL RUN ALONG THE WEST SIDE OF THE PARK AREA AND CONNECT TO AN EXISTING TRAIL. GRADING OF TRAILWAY WILL CONFORM TO UNIVERSAL ACCESS REQUIREMENTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT CONTACT RODNEY R. CHURCH DIRECTOR OF PARKS, RECREATION & CEMETERY CITY OF LAPEER  810-664-4431

AutoCAD SHX Text
1   COVER SHEET COVER SHEET 2 LEGEND SHEET LEGEND SHEET 3   REMOVAL SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 6+40 REMOVAL SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 6+40 4   REMOVAL SHEET - STA 6+40 TO STA 8+50 REMOVAL SHEET - STA 6+40 TO STA 8+50 5 REMOVAL SHEET - STA 8+50 TO P.O.E. REMOVAL SHEET - STA 8+50 TO P.O.E. 6   TRAIL SITE PLAN SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 6+40 TRAIL SITE PLAN SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 6+40 7   TRAIL SITE PLAN SHEET - STA 6+40 TO STA 8+50 TRAIL SITE PLAN SHEET - STA 6+40 TO STA 8+50 8 TRAIL SITE PLAN SHEET - STA 8+50 TO P.O.E. TRAIL SITE PLAN SHEET - STA 8+50 TO P.O.E. 9   TRAIL GRADING SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 6+40 TRAIL GRADING SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 6+40 10   TRAIL GRADING SHEET - STA 6+40 TO STA 8+50 TRAIL GRADING SHEET - STA 6+40 TO STA 8+50 11 TRAIL GRADING SHEET - STA 8+50 TO P.O.E. TRAIL GRADING SHEET - STA 8+50 TO P.O.E. 12 TRAIL PROFILE SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 9+50 TRAIL PROFILE SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 9+50 13 TRAIL PROFILE SHEET - STA 9+50 TO P.O.E. TRAIL PROFILE SHEET - STA 9+50 TO P.O.E. 14 TRAIL CROSS SECTION SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 6+40 TRAIL CROSS SECTION SHEET - P.O.B. TO STA 6+40 15 TRAIL CROSS SECTION SHEET - STA 6+40 TO P.O.E.TRAIL CROSS SECTION SHEET - STA 6+40 TO P.O.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 AND FARMERS CREEK, LAPEER MI, 48446

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF SECTION 5, T7N-R10E, LAPEER COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WORK WITHIN FLOODPLAIN OF FARMERS CREEK RIVER AND WITHIN DELINEATED WETLANDS. CITY OF LAPEER, PART OF SECTION 5, T7N-R10E, LAPEER COUNTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT MGR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/31/2023 2:54 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
R:\Projects\15L0105\dwg\Construction Drawings\01-15L0105 COVER.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 UNDERPASS CONNECTION PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15L0105

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHT#

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAMTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U        UTILITIES        

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE EXISTING UTILITIES LISTED BELOW AND SHOWN ON THESE PLANS REPRESENT THE BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE AS OBTAINED FROM THE UTILITY OWNER. THIS INFORMATION DOES NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR OF THE RESPONSIBILITY TO BE SATISFIED AS TO ITS ACCURACY AND THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES. NAME OF OWNER CONTACT TYPE OF UTILITY CONTACT TYPE OF UTILITY TYPE OF UTILITY DTE ENERGY ROBERT HEISER ELECTRIC ROBERT HEISER ELECTRIC ELECTRIC 1100 CLARK ROAD (586) 457-0192 (586) 457-0192 LAPEER, MI 48446               ROBERT.HEISER@DTEENERGY.COM CONSUMERS ENERGY EVAN HUIZENGA GAS EVAN HUIZENGA GAS GAS 3201 E. COURT STREET (810) 247-8227 (810) 247-8227 FLINT, MI 48506               EVAN.HUIZENGA@CMSENERGY.COM AT&T MICHAEL BAIZ TELEPHONE MICHAEL BAIZ TELEPHONE TELEPHONE 54 N. MILL STREET, P.O. BOX 32 (810) 519-8035 (810) 519-8035 PONTIAC, MI 48342                   MB1269@ATT.COM CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS PATRICK DELISI CABLE PATRICK DELISI CABLE CABLE 1392 TRADE CENTRE DR (810) 247-3899 (810) 247-3899 TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49696        PATRICK.DELISI@CHARTER.COM CITY OF LAPEER JEFFREY GRAHAM WATER, SANITARY, STORM JEFFREY GRAHAM WATER, SANITARY, STORM WATER, SANITARY, STORM DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS (810) 664-4711  AND STREETS      (810) 664-4711  AND STREETS      AND STREETS      217 BENTLEY STREET JGRAHAM@CI.LAPEER.MI.US  JGRAHAM@CI.LAPEER.MI.US  LAPEER, MI 48446 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SUBMITTALS AND CHANGES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLANS - **NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION**

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-6-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED TO EGLE FOR PERMITTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-31-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER EGLE REVIEW



w
w

w
.
r
o

w
e

p
s
c
.
c
o

m

1
2

8
 
N

.
 
S

a
g

i
n

a
w

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

L
a

p
e

e
r
,
 
M

I
 
4

8
4

4
6

O
:
 
(
8

1
0

)
 
6

6
4

-
9

4
1

1

F
:
 
(
8

1
0

)
 
6

6
4

-
3

4
5

1

R
P
R

S
E

C
O

O
W
E

O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L

R
V
I
C
E
S

M
P
A
N
Y

M
-
2
4
 
A

N
D

 
F

A
R

M
E

R
S

 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
L
A

P
E

E
R

 
M

I
,
 
4
8
4
4
6

T
R

A
I
L
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
-
 
P

.
O

.
B

.
 
T

O
 
S

T
A

 
6
+

4
0

6 15

EGLE
WRP039147 v1.0

Approved
Issued On:10/03/2023

Expires On:10/03/2028

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
FARMERS CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.S.E. = 812.5 NOVEMBER 2015

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF EXISTING RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TILE OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TILE OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BOX CULVERT TUNNEL UNDER M-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF EXISTING RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING RETAINING WALL AND FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN ELEVATION ALONG THE 825 CONTOUR LINE PER FLOOD MAP #26087C0262E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GREENBELT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OVERHEAD WIRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT MGR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/31/2023 2:55 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
R:\Projects\15L0105\dwg\Construction Drawings\06-15L0105 TRAIL PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 UNDERPASS CONNECTION PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15L0105

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHT#

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE OF SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ARCH CULVERT UNDER M-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING SIDEWALK AS REQUIRED TO MEET ADA STANDARDS FOR A TURNING PAD AT INTERSECTION OF TRAIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAMMABLE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAMMABLE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAZARDOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAZARDOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE STA 6+40 - SEE SHEET 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRAIL C/L ALIGNMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know what's below.  below. below.    Call before you dig.Call before you dig. before you dig.before you dig.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SUBMITTALS AND CHANGES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLANS - **NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION**

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-6-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED TO EGLE FOR PERMITTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-31-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER EGLE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DUCT BANK APPEARS TO BE ABANDONED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE OF SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND BOUNDARY LINE AS DELINEATED BY MARX WETLANDS LLC ON 4-10-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 4' HIGH, BLACK VINYL CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 4' HIGH, BLACK VINYL CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WORK WITHIN FLOODPLAIN OF FARMERS CREEK RIVER AND WITHIN DELINEATED WETLANDS. CITY OF LAPEER, PART OF SECTION 5, T7N-R10E, LAPEER COUNTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER WORK - SEE GRADING SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL WITH RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE LINE



w
w

w
.
r
o

w
e

p
s
c
.
c
o

m

1
2

8
 
N

.
 
S

a
g

i
n

a
w

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

L
a

p
e

e
r
,
 
M

I
 
4

8
4

4
6

O
:
 
(
8

1
0

)
 
6

6
4

-
9

4
1

1

F
:
 
(
8

1
0

)
 
6

6
4

-
3

4
5

1

R
P
R

S
E

C
O

O
W
E

O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L

R
V
I
C
E
S

M
P
A
N
Y

M
-
2
4
 
A

N
D

 
F

A
R

M
E

R
S

 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
L
A

P
E

E
R

 
M

I
,
 
4
8
4
4
6

T
R

A
I
L
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
-
 
S

T
A

 
6
+

4
0
 
T

O
 
S

T
A

 
8
+

5
0

7 15

EGLE
WRP039147 v1.0

Approved
Issued On:10/03/2023

Expires On:10/03/2028

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know what's below.  below. below.    Call before you dig.Call before you dig. before you dig.before you dig.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
FARMERS CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.S.E. = 812.5 NOVEMBER 2015

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 24" STORM SEWER OUTLET. EX INV = 811.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BOX CULVERT TUNNEL UNDER M-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF EXISTING RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING RETAINING WALL WITH FENCE ALONG THE TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN ELEVATION ALONG THE 822 CONTOUR LINE PER FLOOD MAP #26087C0262E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FOOT BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT MGR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/31/2023 2:55 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
R:\Projects\15L0105\dwg\Construction Drawings\06-15L0105 TRAIL PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 UNDERPASS CONNECTION PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15L0105

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHT#

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAMTON PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE OF SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ARCH CULVERT UNDER M-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER WORK - SEE GRADING SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE STA 6+40 - SEE SHEET 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRAIL C/L ALIGNMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TELEPHONE DUCT BANK UNDER RIVER. DEPTH AT RIVER = 10'±.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SUBMITTALS AND CHANGES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLANS - **NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION**

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-6-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED TO EGLE FOR PERMITTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-31-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER EGLE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAMTON PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND BOUNDARY LINE AS DELINEATED BY MARX WETLANDS LLC ON 4-10-2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE STA 8+50 - SEE SHEET 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RAILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WORK WITHIN FLOODPLAIN OF FARMERS CREEK RIVER AND WITHIN DELINEATED WETLANDS. CITY OF LAPEER, PART OF SECTION 5, T7N-R10E, LAPEER COUNTY.



w
w

w
.
r
o

w
e

p
s
c
.
c
o

m

1
2

8
 
N

.
 
S

a
g

i
n

a
w

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

L
a

p
e

e
r
,
 
M

I
 
4

8
4

4
6

O
:
 
(
8

1
0

)
 
6

6
4

-
9

4
1

1

F
:
 
(
8

1
0

)
 
6

6
4

-
3

4
5

1

R
P
R

S
E

C
O

O
W
E

O
F
E
S
S
I
O
N
A
L

R
V
I
C
E
S

M
P
A
N
Y

M
-
2
4
 
A

N
D

 
F

A
R

M
E

R
S

 
C

R
E

E
K

,
 
L
A

P
E

E
R

 
M

I
,
 
4
8
4
4
6

T
R

A
I
L
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
-
 
S

T
A

 
8
+

5
0
 
T

O
 
P

.
O

.
E

.

8 15

EGLE
WRP039147 v1.0

Approved
Issued On:10/03/2023

Expires On:10/03/2028

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLINE OF PLAYSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HMA TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN ELEVATION ALONG THE 822 CONTOUR LINE PER FLOOD MAP #26087C0262E

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB No:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT MGR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/31/2023 2:55 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
R:\Projects\15L0105\dwg\Construction Drawings\06-15L0105 TRAIL PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
PTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF LAPEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-24 UNDERPASS CONNECTION PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15L0105

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHT#

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAMTON PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE OF SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE OF SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVILION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING HMA TRAIL AS REQUIRED TO MEET ADA STANDARDS FOR A TURNING PAD AT INTERSECTION OF TRAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRAIL C/L ALIGNMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAYSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN ELEVATION ALONG THE 822 CONTOUR LINE PER FLOOD MAP #26087C0262E. LOCATION APPROXIMATED IN WOODED AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know what's below.  below. below.    Call before you dig.Call before you dig. before you dig.before you dig.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN SUBMITTALS AND CHANGES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLANS - **NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION**

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-6-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED TO EGLE FOR PERMITTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-31-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER EGLE REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENESEE STREET R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE STA 8+50 - SEE SHEET 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WORK WITHIN FLOODPLAIN OF FARMERS CREEK RIVER AND WITHIN DELINEATED WETLANDS. CITY OF LAPEER, PART OF SECTION 5, T7N-R10E, LAPEER COUNTY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE LINE



 
      

 

City Manager’s Office 
576 Liberty Park, Lapeer, MI 48446 

Phone:  810-664-5231 
Fax:  810-664-2610 

 
 
 
 
 

October 9th, 2023 
 
RE: Light pole Ribbon policy 
 
City Commission, 
 
The City has been approached by various groups who wish to use/decorate the City’s 
downtown light poles with ribbons for educational, charitable and philanthropic purposes, 
such as cancer awareness or support for military veterans or the police/fire services. 
 
In order to reduce visual clutter, minimize motorist distractions or loss of visibility and to 
help maintain the aesthetic of the City, I would recommend that the City adopt the 
following policy related to the use of and decoration of the City’s downtown light poles 
with ribbons: 
 

1. That decoration of the City’s light poles under this policy must be approved of by 
a Resolution of the City Commission at least 30 days prior to the event. 

2. That the decoration of the City’s flagpoles are not meant to be or serve as a public-
forum for the free-expression by the public but shall instead be limited to those 
decorations that consist of or support an expression of the City’s official 
sentiments. 

3. That the requesting organization shall present evidence of its non-profit, charitable 
or philanthropic status upon request. 

4. That the requesting organization shall present an example of or a visual depiction 
of the proposed decoration as part of its request to place the decorations on the 
City’s light poles. 

5. That only those light poles located on Nepessing St. between North Washington 
St. and North Saginaw St. may be used or decorated. 

6. That the decorations be limited to ribbons, bows, lace, tulle, satin and other similar 
fabrics and decorations. 

7. That the requesting organization may place one temporary sign of not larger than 
24 square feet on City property which provides a greater educational explanation 
of the ribbon decorations and their purpose. Such sign shall follow all requirements 
of the City’s sign ordinances. 

8. That the decorations shall be weather resistant and shall not become unsightly, 
degraded or litter by lack of maintenance. 

9. That the decorations shall only be displayed to bring attention to and educate the 
public regarding charitable or philanthropic purposes only and not be commercial 



 
in nature.  Decorations shall not be displayed in promotion of the sale of any goods 
or services. 

10. The City shall provide no maintenance, protection or replacement of any 
decoration so placed and shall not be liable for the removal of any decoration that 
is not maintained and has become unsightly or litter. 

11. The decorations shall: 
a. Not interfere with the City’s display of flags, banners or other decorations 

on the light poles. 
b. Not need or use electricity. 
c. Not damage the surface of the light pole or damage or conflict with the light 

pole’s function as a light pole. 
d. Not impede upon or interfere with the sidewalk, the road or the public’s use 

thereof. 
e. Be securely fastened to each light pole to prevent the decoration from falling 

to the ground due to wind or rain, but not secured in a way that would 
damage the surface of the light pole. 

f. Be no larger than 48 inches from top to bottom, nor wider than 36 inches 
side to side. 

g. Be maintained by the placing organization to prevent the decorations from 
becoming unsightly, degraded or litter and if not shall be promptly removed 
by the placing organization or the City. 

h. Be mounted no higher than the flag brackets located approximately 8 feet 
off the ground. 

i. Be placed for no longer than 30 days at a time and shall be promptly 
removed at the end of the 30-day period. 

j. Not be placed any sooner than 30 days following any previous 30-day 
period that the light poles were decorated (i.e. there must be 30 days of 
non-decoration in-between decorations). 

k. That no decorations may be placed that would be on a City lightpole during 
the Lapeer Days Festival (generally the third week in August). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 _________________________ 

Mike Womack 
City of Lapeer 
City Manager 
810-245-4202 

mwomack@ci.lapeer.mi.us 
 

 
 

mailto:mwomack@ci.lapeer.mi.us


ITEM H-2a 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: January 25, 2024 
RE: Annual Food Truck Event 2024 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To Approve the Event.  

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
We received a request from the Lapeer Area Chamber of Commerce to their annual event titled 
the “Food Truck Festival” within City Lot #5.   The food trucks will be selling various types of 
prepared foods, this event is a fund raiser and community event for the Chamber.  This event 
will be running on the same weekday and time as the Lapeer Car Cruise but at a separate area 
within the downtown.   

With approval this event will be held on four Monday evenings from 4PM to 8:00PM.  Dates of 
the events, 2024:  

May 13, June 10, July 8, September 9  

The Chamber is requesting that the trucks be allowed to set up in City Municipal Lot #5 between 
Court Street and Saginaw Street, with the trucks parking at the south/west end of the lot, along 
the river.  The vendors for this event are expected to arrive at 1:00PM on the days of the event 
to begin preparing their food. This event will require City services from: DPW for barricades in 
City lot #5 beginning at 7:00AM, Park Dept. for picnic tables and Police services to set up the 
barricades.  There will be music within the pavilion of Annrook Park.  

See PDF SE Food Truck Festival 2024. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Annual Event 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: February 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 26, 2024 
Consent:   X 

 Administrative:  Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 



















 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Farmers Creek 

Nepessing Street Downtown 

Co
ur

t S
tr

ee
t 

Saginaw
 Street 

Annrook Park 

Annrook Park 
Pavillion 

Bridge 

AT&T Building (290 Court Street) 

Food Trucks                           Food Trucks              Food Trucks 

Genesee  Street 

Horton Street 

N 

          Food  Trucks             Food Trucks                     Food trucks 

Clay Street 

Historic  
Court House 

CHOICE ONE BANK 

Rink 



ITEM H-2b 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: January 25, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Fireworks 2024 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To Approve the Event. Insurance required. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
We have received a request from the Lapeer Chamber of Commerce to hold their annual 
fireworks display on Wednesday, July 3, 2024, beginning at dusk on the grounds of Roland 
Warner Middle School.  The Chamber has contracted with a fireworks company to provide the 
display.  The Chamber is responsible for contacting the Lapeer Community Schools, Mott 
Community College and the Lapeer County Library to use their properties for this event.  Food 
vendors will also be present during the event, proper licensing for vendors to be verified by the 
Chamber.  

This event requires city services in regular and overtime hours from the Police Department, 
Parks Department and the Department of Public Works along with man hours from the Fire 
Department. The Chamber is expecting 30,000 people in and around the area.   
Site clean-up after the event will be the responsibility of the Lapeer Chamber of Commerce. 

Parking will be available at Lapeer Center for Innovation, Mott College, Roland Warner Middle 
School and Lapeer County Library Properties.  DeMille Blvd. will be closed to traffic during the 
event and will reopen after it has been cleared of any debris. 

See PDF File SE Fireworks 2024. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Annual Event 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: February 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 27, 2024 
Consent: X 

 Administrative:  Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 











ITEM H-2c 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: January 25, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Lapeer Days 2024 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To Approve the Event. Insurance required.  

Per Resolution, Social District Commons Area to be closed during the Lapeer Days Festival. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
We have received a request from the Lapeer Area Chamber of Commerce to hold their annual Lapeer 
Days Festival on Thursday, August 15, through Sunday, August 18, 2024, in the downtown area.  The 
set up for the event will begin on Nepessing Street, Thursday, August 15, 2024, with road closures 
beginning at 10:00 A.M.  Carnival activities begin on Wednesday, August 14, 2024, requiring municipal 
parking lot between Court and Saginaw Streets south of Nepessing to be closed on Monday, August 
12 for sweeping and carnival set up. 

Attached is a list of estimated expenses to the City of Lapeer for your review. Estimated costs have 
been provided by the City Departments that will be providing manpower and/or equipment for this 
event. These listed expenses have traditionally been considered as a Co-Sponsorship of the event, 
the Chamber does recognize the City’s Co-sponsorship in their publications and announcements.  

1. BILLINGS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS:
DPW Employee Straight Time/Overtime $17,000 
Equipment costs DPW $6,573 
Water Department Preparation $1004 
Police Employee Straight Time/Overtime $13,430 
Parks and Rec. Straight Time/Overtime $2,200 
Fire Department Costs $4,700 
Facility Fee $0 
Purchased Materials $178.0 Parks 
Rented Materials $0 +15%__ 
Total $45,085 Approximately 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Annual Event 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: February 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 27, 2024 
Consent:   X 

 Administrative:  Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 











ITEM H-2d 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: January 24, 2024 
RE: Special Event Request Rubber Duck Dash 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To approve the event.  Insurance required. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
A request has been received from the Kiwanis Club of Lapeer to hold an annual event within 
Cramton Park on Saturday, September 14, 2024, from 11AM to 3PM.  This event will utilize 
Farmers Creek going through Cramton Park to float rubber ducks in a race.  The event will also 
include games, children’s activities, a petting zoo, and food trucks.  Event organizers are also 
requesting a road closure of Monroe Street from Genesee Street south to the railroad tracks. 
This event will require services from the Police Department and the DPW for barricades.  The 
Fire Department is also being requested, if necessary, to assist with putting water into the 
Creek to assist with the moving of the rubber ducks.   

See PDF SE Rubber Duck Dash 2024. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 

Annual Event. 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date:  February 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 25, 2024 
Consent:  X 

 Administrative:  Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 



















ITEM H-2e 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: January 24, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Fantasy Forest 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To approve the event. Insurance required.  

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
We have received a request from the Kiwanis Club of Lapeer to hold the annual Fantasy Forest 
event on Saturday, October 12, 2024, from 11:00 AM to 4:00 PM at Rowden Park.  They did 
request a setup time of 7am and a tear down time of  pm.  They do expect approximately 2500 
people to attend the event.     

This event has been well attended in the past and creates a non-threatening “trick-or-treat” 
event for children.  Children and families walk the Linear Park path through Rowden Park and 
stop at various participant locations and receive candy.  

This event requires minimal police department services. The Police Department does actively 
participate in this event as a community outreach service.  

See PDF File SE Fantasy Forest 2024. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Annual Event 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date:   February 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 27, 2024 
Consent:       X 

 Administrative : Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
Public Hearing: 











1

Kara Lambourn

From: Rodney Church <rchurch@ci.lapeer.mi.us>
Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 4:39 PM
To: Kara Lambourn
Subject: RE: Pavilion Rentals for Kiwanis

The e‐mail below is from an external source. Please do not reply, open attachments, or click links from an unknown or 
suspicious origin. 

Kara, 
 
Rubber Duck Dash: 
I reserved all three pavilions at Cramton for you for the rubber duck dash on 9/14/24. I don’t want 
there to be parking issues if other rentals take place. I also reserved Cramton West Pavilion for 
9/13/24 in case you start setting up that day.  
 
Fantasy Forest: 
I reserved Rowden Pavilion for 10/12/24. 
 
You should be all set. I see you sent the special event applications into Tracey and Sara. Sara no 
longer works here but I’m Tracey is handling those.  
 
 
 

Rodney R. Church 

Director of Parks, Recreation & Cemetery 
Community Center/Recreation Offices 
880 S. Saginaw Street, Lapeer, MI 48446 
810 – 664 – 4431 
https://www.ci.lapeer.mi.us/ 

 

From: Kara Lambourn <kara.lambourn@choiceone.bank>  
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2024 10:33 AM 
To: Rodney Church <rchurch@ci.lapeer.mi.us> 
Subject: Pavilion Rentals for Kiwanis 
 
Hi Rodney, 
  
I tried doing this through the website, but it doesn’t let me do it for the non‐profit rate. Can you assist or forward to who 

can? Thank you সহ  I’m turning in the City of Lapeer Special Apps today as well. 
  



2

 
  

 

kara lambourn 
AdministraƟve Officer and ExecuƟve Assistant   

 

direct   810‐245‐2903 

cell   810‐441‐7302 

email  kara.lambourn@choiceone.bank 

 

83 W Nepessing St., Lapeer, MI 48446 
send large files to my transfer site 
  
 

    Enhanced Security - choiceone.bank 
  
  

This message contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If 
you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e‐mail. 
Please notify the sender immediately by e‐mail if you have received this e‐mail by mistake and 
delete this e‐mail from your system. E‐mail transmission cannot be guaranteed to be secure or 
error‐free as information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or 
incomplete, or contain viruses. The sender therefore does not accept liability for any errors or 
omissions in the contents of this message, which arise as a result of e‐mail transmission. Equal 
Housing Lender.  



3

 
 
The e‐mail above is from an external source. Please do not reply, open attachments, or click links from an unknown or 
suspicious origin.  



ITEM H-2f 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: January 25, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Christmas Parade 12-6-2024 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
To Approve the Event.  Insurance required. 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 

We have received a request from the Lapeer Area Chamber of Commerce to hold their annual 
Christmas parade with the downtown area on Nepessing Street.  This event will take place on 
Friday, December 6, 2024, beginning at 6:00PM, with line-up starting at 5:00PM. This parade 
will be a nighttime event. 
The event will require Police Department Officers working overtime for traffic control.  The 
Department of Public Works services will also be needed to place barricades at intersections 
during their normal work hours, LCPD Officers will set the barricades up and remove them from 
the roadway.  

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 

Annual Event. 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date:  February 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 27, 2024 
Consent: X 

Administrative:  Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
Public Hearing: 









Nepessing Street Nepessing Street

Park Street

C
o
u
rt
St
re
et

P
in
e
St
re
et

Sa
gi
n
aw

St
re
et

C
ed

ar
St
re
et

M
as
o
n
St
re
et

C
ed

ar
St
re
et

C
o
u
rt
St
re
et

P
in
e
St
re
et

Fo
x
St
re
et

Genesee Street

To M-24

DOWNTOWN PARKING MAP

Clay Street

P
er
m
it
on
ly

9a
m
-3
p
m
M
-F

H
is
to
ri
c

C
o
ur
th
o
us
e

PostOffice

Fa
rm

er
’s

M
ar
ke
t

C
o
u
n
ty
A
nn
ex

B
u
ild
in
g
/R
eg
is
te
r

o
f
D
ee
ds

G
al
le
ry
19
4

P
IX
Th
ea
tr
e

C
ha

m
be

r

of C
om

m
er

ce

County
Administration

Christmas parade lines up 

on Nepessing street and 

rounte begins at Saginaw 

Street and Nepessing Street 

up to Church Street where it 

turns off.



ITEM H-2g 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: January 26, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Friday Night Bikes 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the event.  Insurance required 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION 
We have received a Special Event Application from Scott Jankovic to hold an event titled: 
“Friday Night Bikes”.  This event is scheduled to be held nearly every Friday night during the 
summer months beginning June 7, 2024, and ending September 20, 2024.  The event’s 
operating time will be from 5:00PM to 10:00PM. This event will take place on Nepessing Street, 
from Mason Street to Court Street. Nepessing Street will be closed at Mason Street and at 
Court Street.  At the time of this request, there is no organization to coordinate and run 
additional activities during the event nights. Should activities such as band/DJ, vendors etc. 
resume as held in 2023, the police department will provide the necessary assistance.  The 
event expects to bring 200 – 400 people each night.     
This event requires City resources from the DPW for barricades and cones. The police 
department will set up the barricades/cones in conjunction with any event organizers.  Police 
presence during the event may result in overtime. 
Calender Event Days: 
June – 7th, 14th, 21st, 28th  
July – 5th, 12th, 19th, 26th 
August – 2nd, 9th, 23rd, 30th 
September – 6th, 13th, 20th  

See PDF File SE Friday Night Bikes 2024. 

BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Previously held event in 2023.  

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: February 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: January 26, 2024 
Consent:  

 Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 











ITEM H-2h
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: February 14, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Friday Night Bikes 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve this event, pending insurance. 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
We have received a Special Event Application from Norm Barbieri Jr., to hold an event titled: 
“Friday Night Bikes”.  This event is scheduled to be held nearly every Friday night during the 
summer months beginning May 31st and ending August 23rd, 2024.  The event’s operating time 
will be from 6:00PM to 10:00PM. This event will take place on Nepessing Street, from Mason 
Street to Court Street. Nepessing Street will be closed at Mason Street and at Court Street also 
including Cedar St.  At the time of this request, there is no organization to coordinate and run 
additional activities during the event nights. Should activities such as band/DJ, vendors etc. 
resume as held in 2023, the police department will provide the necessary assistance.  The 
event expects to bring 300 – 500 people each night.     
This event requires City resources from the DPW for barricades and cones. The event will 
require electrical services.  The police department will set up the barricades/cones in 
conjunction with any event organizers.  Police presence during the event may result in 
overtime. 
Calender Event Days: 
May  - 31st  
June – 7th, 14th, 21st, 28th 
July – 12th, 19th, 26th 
August – 2nd, 9th, 23rd  

See PDF File SE Friday Night Bikes 2024. 
BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION 
Previously held event in 2023.  

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 

Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 14, 2024 
Consent: 

 Administrative: Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 













ITEM J-1 

 

To: Mayor and City Commission 
Date: February 14, 2024 
RE: Board & Commission Appointments                  
  

MAYORAL APPOINTMENT 
 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION MEMBER NAME 

CURRENT 
TERM 

EXPIRES 
TERM 

LENGTH 

 
NEW TERM 

EXPIRATION 

 
COMMENTS 
Re:  STATUS 

Cemetery Board 
Mike Robinet 

 
Vacancy 

Apr 1, 2024 
 

Apr 1, 2028 

5 Year 
 

5 Year 

 
Apr 1, 2029 

 

Reappointment  
Recommended 

 
Awaiting 

Recommendation 

County Center Board Vacancy Jan 1, 2025 1 Year 
 

 Awaiting 
Recommendation 

Local Officers 
Compensation 
Commission 

Vacancy 
Vacancy 

Oct 1, 2026 
Oct 1, 2027 

5 Year 
5 Year 

 

Awaiting 
Recommendation 

 
 
COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 
 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION MEMBER NAME EXPIRATION TERM 

LENGTH 
NEW TERM 

EXPIRATION 
COMMENTS 
Re: STATUS 

Board of Review Didrik Krogh Jan 1, 2025 3 Year  Appointment 
Recommended 

Income Tax Board   
of Review Vacancy Dec 1, 2024 3 Year  Awaiting 

Recommendation 
Prison Liaison 

Committee Vacancy Apr 1, 2025 3 Year  Awaiting 
Recommendation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 14, 2024 
 Consent: 
Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk  
Public Hearing:  
 



null

From: Rodney Church
To: Romona Sanchez
Subject: Re: Cemetery Board
Date: Thursday, February 8, 2024 11:55:34 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image005.png

Mike Robinet is in for another 5 years. 

Rodney R. Church
Director of Parks, Recreation & Cemetery
Community Center/Recreation Offices
880 S. Saginaw Street, Lapeer, MI 48446
810 – 664 – 4431
https://www.ci.lapeer.mi.us/

On Feb 7, 2024, at 3:36 PM, Rodney Church <rchurch@ci.lapeer.mi.us> wrote:


Yes, I will check.
 
<!--[if !vml]-->
<image002.png>

<!--[endif]-->Rodney R. Church

Director of Parks, Recreation & Cemetery
Community Center/Recreation Offices
880 S. Saginaw Street, Lapeer, MI 48446
810 – 664 – 4431
https://www.ci.lapeer.mi.us/
 
From: Romona Sanchez <rsanchez@ci.lapeer.mi.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 7, 2024 10:44 AM
To: Rodney Church <rchurch@ci.lapeer.mi.us>
Subject: Cemetery Board

 
Hi Rodney,
 
Mike Robinet’s term on the Cemetery Board is going to expire on April 1,
2024, can you find out if he wants to renew for 5 years?
 
Thanks,

Romona
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

mailto:rchurch@ci.lapeer.mi.us
mailto:rsanchez@ci.lapeer.mi.us
https://www.ci.lapeer.mi.us/
https://www.ci.lapeer.mi.us/




<!--[if !vml]-->
<image005.png>
<!--[endif]-->Romona Sanchez

City Clerk
576 Liberty Park, Lapeer, MI 48446
810 – 245 – 4218
https://www.ci.lapeer.mi.us/
 

https://www.ci.lapeer.mi.us/


From: Denise Marinelli
To: Romona Sanchez
Subject: BOR Appointment
Date: Wednesday, February 7, 2024 2:57:04 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image003.png

Good Afternoon,
Please put Didrik Krogh on the Agenda for appointment to replace Bonnie Pattison as
a member of the Board of Review. The term ends on January 1, 2025.
Thank you,
Denise Marinelli
 
 
 
Denise Marinelli, MAAO
Assessor
Assessing Department
576 Liberty Park, Lapeer, MI 48446
810 - 245 - 4217
https://dmarinelli.ci.lapeer.mi.us/
 

mailto:dmarinelli@ci.lapeer.mi.us
mailto:rsanchez@ci.lapeer.mi.us
https://dmarinelli.ci.lapeer.mi.us/






ITEM K-1   

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\02-20-24 Regular\K- Monthly Reports Cover.docx 

 

To: Mayor and City Commission 
Date: February 14, 2024 
RE: MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORTS 
CITY DEPARTMENTS: 
1. BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
 
2. FINANCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 A. ASSESSING DIVISION 
 B. INCOME TAX DIVISION 
 C. ACCOUNTING/DATA PROCESSING DIVISION 
 
3. FIRE AND RESCUE DEPARTMENT 
 
4. HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 A. LAPEER HOUSING COMMISSION (LHC) 
 B. LAPEER NEIGHBORHOOD’S INC. (LNI) 
 C. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
5. PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 A. DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 
 
6. POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 A. POLICE 
 B. ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT 
 C. PARKING DIVISION 
 
7. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 A. SEWER UTILITY DIVISION 
 B. STREET DIVISION 
 C. WATER DIVISION 
 D. WASTEWATER DIVISION 
 
8. MARIJUANA MONTHLY REPORT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 14, 2024 
   
   Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 
 











Item K-1-2-A 

 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
C.C. City Board of Commissioners 
From: Denise Marinelli, Assessor 
Date: February 12, 2024 
RE: Monthly Departmental Report 

ASSESSING DEPARTMENT CONCENTRATION: 
 

• Property Transfers are processed and are currently up to date.  Deeds have been 
processed through January 2024.  

• Current Deed breakdown: 
 

 Deeds January 
Vacant 

land 
New 

Construction 

 
Prior 

Month 
Transfers 17 5 2 20 
Non-Transfers 6     08 
Forcl/Redmptn 1/0     1/0 
Total  24     29 
     
     

 

• 2024  Ad-valorem values are being set including new construction as of Tax Day, December 

31, 2023. Reports are being created. Land Values and ECF are completed. Assessment 

Notices will be sent out this month. 

• The Personal Property statements are currently being reviewed and processed. 

• The Inflation Rate for 2024 for Headlee is 1.051; the Capped Value rate will be 1.05(taxable 

value increase) per statute. 

• We currently have 1 Michigan Tax Tribunal case for the 2023 tax year. All information  has 

been given to the City attorneys. 

• The new year brings in our busiest and most demanding time, however, the department 

continues to investigate, correct, and update property description discrepancies, omissions, 

errors, and changes. We assist departments, property owners, realtors and appraisers with 

questions and concerns as well as processing address and lot split requests. 

• As always, please contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 



Item # K-1-2-B  

 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date: February 8, 2024 
RE: Income Tax Monthly Report for January 2024 

CITY OF LAPEER 
Monthly Financial Statement 

Income Tax Department 
January 2024 

       

       

 Net Net Original Current Actual Excess 
Fiscal Monthly Total Budget Budget Total (Deficit) 
Year Income Yr-to-date for year for year for year Revenue 

       
2013/14 $322,293 $1,614,605 $2,590,000 $2,590,000 $2,827,204 $237,204 

       
2014/15 $309,837 $1,678,925 $2,590,000 $2,590,000 $2,953,553 $363,553 

       
2015/16 $390,919 $1,708,447 $2,785,000 $2,785,000 $3,069,571 $284,571 

       
2016/17 $444,252 $1,919,516 $3,065,000 $3,065,000 $3,212,298 $147,298 

       
2017/18 $419,828 $2,058,524 $3,165,000 $3,165,000 $3,349,223 $184,223 

       
2018/19 $505,129 $2,024,832 $3,175,000 $3,175,000 $3,521,027 $346,027 

       
2019/20 $352,503 $1,917,809 $3,265,000 $3,265,000 $3,228,023 -$36,977 

       
2020/21 $336,990 $1,950,968 $3,495,000 $3,495,000 $3,783,095 $288,095 

       
2021/22 $646,820 $2,546,758 $3,476,000 $3,476,000 $4,527,734 $1,051,734 

       
2022/23 $562,326 $2,451,113 $4,090,000 $4,140,076 $4,941,930 $801,854 

       
2023/24 $420,469 $2,576,863 $4,833,000 $4,833,000   
       
Original Budget and Current Year Budget columns for FYE 2013- 2023 adjusted to include budgeted 
p&I & prosecution 

       
       

 



Item # K-1-2-C 

 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date: February 14, 2024 
RE: Finance Department Report for January 2024 
 

1)  161 - voucher checks were issued. 
 
2)  329 - payroll payments were issued. 
 
3)         10 - income tax refund checks were issued. 
 
4) Records were reviewed with those needing information on burial location.   There were 

two (2) graves purchased (one-resident/one-non-resident) and one foundation 
purchased (for $371.20). 

 
 5) 504 Winter 2023 property tax bills were receipted for $1,984,206.58; twenty-three (23) 

Summer 2023 property tax bills were receipted for $19,909.27; one (1) delinquent 2022 
personal property tax bill was receipted for $2,495.48; one (1) delinquent 2021 personal 
property tax bill was receipted for $302.36; one (1) delinquent 2019 personal property 
tax bill was receipted for $57.55; and one (1) delinquent 2018 personal property tax bill 
was receipted for $17.45.     

 
6) There were 77 additions and 73 cancellations received regarding the voter registration 

records. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ITEM K-1-3 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager  
From: Mike Vogt, Fire Chief 
Date: February 5, 2024 
RE: January 2024 

MONTH SUMMARIZED:  

Training: The department conducted a total of six training sessions (3 day/3 night).  A total of 117.5 man-
hours were spent in training during the month.   

Community Risk Reduction:  No activities.   

Fire & Life Safety:  Six annual inspections, 10 reinspection, four other types of inspections, and six site visits 
were completed in the City, with 15 violations being identified.  There were two businesses inspected that 
were without any fire code violations.  Three tenant space plans, one site plan, one plan review, one fire 
suppression plan and one fire alarm plan were reviewed by the Building Department for the month of January. 

Responses:  The department responded to a total of 56 incidents during the month, requiring a total of 559.5 
man-hours.  This is 27 more responses than we had for the same period in 2023. 43% of these responses 
occurred Monday-Friday between the hours of 6:00 am and 6:00 pm. The estimated dollar loss for the month 
was $113,000.  The loss for the month resulted from residential building fire in the City of Lapeer, a garage 
fire in Lapeer Township and a garage fire in Mayfield Township. 

The number of responses for the month by municipality was: City of Lapeer-31, Lapeer Twp-10, Mayfield 
Twp-10, Oregon Twp-4, Automatic/Mutual Aid-1.   

The average emergency response time (in minutes) to each municipality was: City of Lapeer-0.0, Lapeer 
Twp-7.5, Mayfield Twp-6.0, Oregon Twp-0.0.   

The calendar year annual percentage of responses by municipality is: City of Lapeer-55.36%, Lapeer Twp-
17.86%, Mayfield Twp-17.86%, Oregon Twp-7.14%, Assists-1.79%.   

The number of burn permits issued for the month by municipality was: Lapeer Twp-79, Mayfield Twp-130, 
Oregon Twp-39.   

The breakdown of responses by type is as follows:   

Fire Alarm-Malicious 0 Fire Alarm-Unintentional                        10          
Fire Alarm-Malfunction 5 Fire Alarm-Residential 4      
Building Fire-Residential 1 Building Fire-Commercial 0      
Building Fire-Other 2 Vehicle Fire 0 
Grass/Brush Fire 0 Rescue 1          
Good Intent 0  Electrical Related                                   8          
Smoke Investigation 2 Gasoline/Diesel Spill/Leak 1        
Natural Gas/Propane Leak 5 Carbon Monoxide (alarm & actual)   4                
Other Type Fires 3 Other Type Response 8          
Assist to Other Agencies 2            Washdown 0   

 

 

 



Page 2 
 
City of Lapeer Activities Calendar 

 

 

 

 

 



                           ITEM K-1-4-a  
Dept:    Housing Improvement Department 
Submitted To: Mr. Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:    Denise Soldenski, Director of Housing and Neighborhood Development 
Date:    February 15th, 2024  
RE:    January 10th, 2024 – February 6th, 2024 

copy:    Lapeer Housing Commission/Lapeer Riverview Towers, LLC 

 
LAPEER HOUSING COMMISSION (LHC)/LAPEER RIVERVIEW TOWERS, LLC (LRT) 
 
A. RIVERVIEW TOWERS: HUD PROJECT BASED VOUCHER (PBV) 

1. As of February 6, Riverview Towers has two vacancies which are expected to be filled 
upon completion of unit turns with kitchen/bathroom upgrades. Target lease up for both 
will be on or before March 1.   

2. The Riverview waitlist contains a sufficient supply of applicants to fill vacant units. 
3. Riverview Towers has a new Beautician for the Beauty Shop! Ms. Soldenski would 

like approval for the new lease to be signed by Ms. Soldenski and Mr. Mikus for 
2/16/24 to 2/28/25 for Looking Good Again Phase II.  Residents will be happy to again 
have access to a salon on-site.  

4. The conference table and chairs have been moved into the office space formerly rented 
by Friends and will now be a conference room for Housing Dept, Lapeer Riverview 
Towers and Lapeer Housing Commission business. The furniture fits perfectly and 
makes great use of this space while opening the entire Beauty Shop up for use by the 
new lessee.  

 
B. HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM (HCV) 

1. As of February 6, 96 vouchers are under contract. 
2. Pulling applicants from the waitlist will continue as funding allows to fill vacant vouchers.   

 
C. ADMINISTRATION 

1. Attachment #1 Lapeer Housing Commission/Lapeer Riverview Towers, LLC financials.  
2. Ms. Soldenski would like to introduce and get approval from the board for our new 

board member, Mr. Brad Chayka. Mr. Chayka was appointed by the Mayor on 2/5/24. 
Welcome Mr. Chayka!  

3. Ms. Soldenski would like approval from the board for board member title changes 
due to resignation of board member and Vice Chair, Racosta. Effective 2/15/2024, 
James Mikus will remain as Board Chair, Kerri Roberts will become Vice Chair, Robin 
Chesnutt will become Treasurer, Lisa Lie will become Secretary, and Brad Chayka will 
be Board Member.   

4. Also due to the resignation of board member Racosta, Ms. Soldenski would like 
approval to remove Ms. Racosta from signature authority on the four LHC/LRT 
bank accounts (two checking and two insured cash sweep savings) at Choice One 
Bank and replace that with signature authority for Robin Chesnutt effective 
1/19/2024. Within the motion please confirm that the people approved for 
signature authority are the following: Mr. James Mikus, Kerri Roberts, Robin 
Chesnutt and Denise Soldenski. The motion should also provide approval for Ms. 



City of Lapeer 
Page 2 
 

Soldenski to initiate and complete the transactions with Choice One Bank per 
Resolution 141-2013.     

5. Ms. Soldenski would like approval of the items to be included in FY 7/1/2024 PHA 
Annual Plan. This plan was reviewed at the 1/18/24 meeting. The attached document 
covers both the Capital Expense projects and the policy updates that will be mandatory 
to implement this fiscal year. Notice of the public hearing scheduled for March 21st, 2024 
was in the Jan. 26th edition of the LA View.  

6. Ms. Soldenski would like approval from the board to modify the Procurement 
Policy to require board approval for non-federal purchases that exceed $10,000. 
Currently, policy allows for the ED to approve purchases up to $150,000.  

7. HUD released the Final Rule of the Housing Opportunity Through Modernization Act 
(HOTMA) of 2016, Sections 102, 103 and 104 on February 14th, 2023.  This rule 
provides for income and asset changes that will affect the HCV and PBV programs and 
was intended to be effective January 1st, 2024; however due to HUD systems not being 
ready and the extensive need for training, have postponed the effective date for sections 
102 and 104 to January 1st, 2025. HUD released PIH Notice 2023-27 which provides 
implementation guidance for sections 102 and 104, the two sections that impact HCV 
and PBV. HUD’s guidance requires PHAs to include HOTMA in their Annual Plans which 
are due 75 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, July 1st for LHC. Therefore, 
LHC compliance date will be after April 17th, 2024 and on or before Jan. 1st, 2025.  
Factors that will impact the LHC compliance date are software system readiness, staff 
training and tenant/landlord notifications.  Ms. Soldenski has been working on converting 
the LHC HCV Admin Plan to the format purchased by Nan McKay which includes the 
HOTMA updates.   

8. HUD is also changing the process/standard for Housing Quality Standard Inspections 
(HQS) to National Standards for the Physical Inspection of Real Estate (NSPIRE). The 
new standard is an inspection model that is more common across the various HUD 
programs. This new method is under pilot and was scheduled to be rolled out for 
HCV/PBV in October 2023; however, HUD has allowed PHAs to use existing inspection 
protocols until October 2024 to allow for systems to be updated and training to take 
place. Full implementation will include use of an NSPIRE application via handheld tablet 
or dedicated cell phone for electronic inspections. HUD has issued PIH Notice 2023-28 
which provides for implementation guidance and administrative procedures for 
HCV/PBV. Ms. Soldenski completed training via Nan McKay on 11/9/23 and is now 
certified for NSPIRE.  

9. HUD is moving forward with a more clear proposed rule for Affirmatively Furthering Fair 
Housing. HUD’s intent is to “affirmatively further fair housing by creating strong, 
sustainable, inclusive communities and quality affordable housing for all.” More 
information to come as this proposed rule approaches final rule. 

10. HUD has been releasing updated chapters in the “Housing Choice Voucher Program 
Guidebook”.  As the chapters are released, Ms. Soldenski reviews, updates and 
requests approval for our HCV Administrative Plan, if necessary. There are no updates 
to the Guidebook this month that affect policy.  

 



                   ITEM K-1-4-b 
To:    Housing Improvement Department 
Submitted To: Mr. Mike Womack, City Manager 
From:    Denise Soldenski, Director of Housing and Neighborhood Development 
Date:    February 15th, 2024  
RE:    January 10th, 2024 – February 6th, 2024 
copy:    Lapeer Neighborhoods Inc. 

 
A. HOUSING IMPROVEMENT DEPARTMENT (HID) - See attachment #2 for project 

photos. 
 

1. MSHDA NEP - Mt. Hope Area Grant Program (Round 9):  This grant will start in May 
and will be completed in December 2024.   

 
2. USDA Rural Development HPG Grant:  Grant funding has been extended to March 

30, 2024.   

a. Project 2 - Hartley St. – Crawl Space Rehab – Project is process.  Expected to be 
completed by February 9, 2024. 
 

3. MSHDA MI-HOPE Grant:  MSHDA has completed the amendment and projects are 
eligible to start.  Ms. Lincoln is working on gathering additional documents to start the 
process for each applicant.     
a. Project 1 - Lincoln St. - Roof, Water Heater, Electrical – Application stage. 
b. Project 2 – Jefferson St. – Windows, Insulation, Appliances, Storm Doors/Exterior 

Doors, HVAC, Electrical – Application stage. 
c. Project 3 – Dewey St. – Insulation and Air Conditioner – Application stage. 
d. Project 4 – S. Elm St. – Roof Replacement – Energy Audit phase. 
e. Project 5 – Hartley St. – Furnace/Air and Water Heater – Application stage. 
f. Project 6 – N. Main St. – Insulation and Windows/Doors – On Hold. 
g. Project 7 – Lincoln St. – HVAC, windows, electrical – Application stage. 
h. Project 8 – E. Nepessing St.- Roof – Application stage. 
i. Project 9 – N. Monroe St. – Rental – Roof, Insulation – Application stage. 

 
4. MSHDA Housing Choice Vouchers / Section 8 

a. Lapeer County’s voucher allocation is 342 regular Housing Choice Vouchers, 7 
Project Based Vouchers, 17 Emergency Housing Vouchers for a total in Lapeer 
County of 366.  Tuscola County allocation is 88 Housing Choice Vouchers, 5 Project 
Based Vouchers, and 3 Emergency Housing Vouchers for a total in Tuscola County 
of 96. Huron County allocation is a total of 47 Housing Choice Vouchers, and 2 
Emergency Housing Vouchers for a total of 49. Our total VASH allocation remains 
at 35, Moving Up is 3, and Balance of State is 1. MSHDA has discontinued reporting 
the allowable over-allocation of 4% maximum. The total allocation is 550.  

b. Current lease up rate is now at 99.63%.  
 
 
 
 



City of Lapeer 
Page 2 
 

B. LAPEER NEIGHBORHOODS INCORPORATED (LNI)  
1. Projects –  

a. 405 S. Elm: Vacant: Continuing research into funding for a potential build or possible 
sale of the property.  The market is not in a good position to build, as the cost would 
potentially outweigh what a home could sell for at this location. However, interest 
rates are beginning to drop and this may be possible with future grants if a 
development subsidy is available.  

 

C. FINANCE 
1. Attachment #1:  Financial report.  

  

D. ADMINISTRATION 

1. Ms. Soldenski would like to introduce and get approval from the board for our new 
board member, Mr. Brad Chayka. Mr. Chayka was appointed by the Mayor on 2/5/24. 
Welcome Mr. Chayka!  

2. Ms. Soldenski would like approval from the board for board member title changes 
due to resignation of board member and Vice Chair, Racosta. Effective 2/15/2024, 
James Mikus will remain as Board Chair, Kerri Roberts will become Vice Chair, Robin 
Chesnutt will become Treasurer, and Lisa Lie will become Secretary.   

3. Also due to the resignation of board member Racosta, Ms. Soldenski would like 
approval to remove Ms. Racosta from signature authority on the two LNI bank 
accounts (checking and savings) at Chase Bank and replace that with signature 
authority for Robin Chesnutt effective 2/15/24.  The motion should also provide 
approval for Ms. Soldenski to initiate the transactions with Chase Bank per 
Resolution 29-2013.     

4. Ms. Lincoln will be attending the MSHDA All Grantee meeting in Bath, Michigan on 
March 20, 2024.  Topics of discussion will be MSHDA NEP and MSHDA MI-HOPE grant 
programs and procedures.  



 

 1 

 
 
 

 

TO:  Lapeer City Planning Commission 
FROM: Planning Department 
DATE:  February 1, 2024 
RE:   February 2024 Development Activities Report 

 
This report summarizes activity on various development projects in the City over the past month 
listed by full site plans for developments reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission and 
administratively reviewed site plans for projects currently in the review and development process. 
 

Site Plans Reviewed by Planning Commission 
 

1. Lapeer Cultivation – Grow Facility – 39 & 47 W. Genesee Street 
General Information – Construction of a new marihuana grow facility (formerly known as SEMI 
Grown) with related site improvements.  
 

Project Status – The previous site plan approval expired and a new plan was re-submitted on 
November 1, 2023.  On January 11, 2024 the Planning Commission denied the applicant’s request 
for a Special Land Use for this project, therefore, the site plan will be removed from this report next 
month.  
 

2. EL Cozumel Restaurant – 1109 S. Main Street 
General Information – Construction of a new 5,692 sq. ft. restaurant with related site 
improvements.  
 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on October 31, 2023 and was conditionally approved 
at the December 14, 2023 Planning Commission meeting.  City staff is waiting on revised plans. 
 

3. DTE Energy – Apollo Substation – 3135 John Conley Dr. South 
General Information – Construction of a new electrical substation and control building with related 
site improvements.  
 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on October 27, 2023 and approved with conditions at  
the January 11, 2024 Planning Commission meeting.  City staff is waiting on revised plans. 
 

4. Security Credit Union – 1073 S. Main St. 
General Information – Construction of a new 3,438 sq. ft. credit union facility with four drive through 
lanes.  
 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on August 31, 2023.  Revised plans were submitted 
on September 27, 2023 and approved with conditions by the Planning Commission on October 12, 
2023.  Revised plans submitted on January 12, 2024 are ready for approval continent upon 
submittal and review of MDOT and LCRC permits. 
 

5. Carriage Hill Circle – New Multiple-Family Residential Units 
General Information – Construction of a new phased multiple-family residential development 
consisting of 32 units on Carriage Hills Circle. 
 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on April 3, 2023 and revised plans were received on 
April 26th, June 9th July 21st.  The Planning Commission approved the site plan with conditions on 
August 10, 2023.  Revised plans were received on August 31st and October 19th 2023.  The site 
plan was approved on October 19, 2023 and final signed plans were distributed October 31, 2023. 
The applicant has stated that final building plans will be submitted in Spring 2024. 
 

6. Sunoco Station – 715 S. Main St. 
General Information – Construction of a 2,135 sq. ft. addition to the existing Sunoco Gas Station.  
 

Project Status – The site plan was submitted on April 3, 2023.  The Planning Commission 
conditionally approved the site plan at the July 13th, 2023, meeting.  Final plans were approved as 
of September 14, 2023 and signed copies were distributed on September 29, 2023. The building 
department is awaiting submittal of building plans. 
 

 



 

 2 

 
 
 
 
 

7. Blain’s Farm and Fleet – SE Corner of Turrill Rd./S. Lapeer Rd. 
General Information – Construction of a new 84,000+ sq. ft. commercial building with auto repair 
bays on a vacant parcel at the southeast corner of Turrill Rd./S. Lapeer Rd. 
Project Status – The site plan was submitted on January 6, 2023.  Received conditional approval 
by the Planning Commission on February 9, 2023 based on addressing all outstanding City staff 
comments. The applicant re-submitted a variance request concerning exterior building materials on 
which action was postponed by the ZBA on October 23rd pending a determination by the Planning 
Commission on November 9, 2023. The Planning Commission determined on November 9 that the 
proposed metal siding was not an appropriate predominant building material and directed the 
Planning Department to explore alternative options with the applicant. Revised plans are pending 
and a site plan extension request was submitted to the City.  
 

8. Lapeer Villas – Baldwin Rd. – Site Plan Amendment 
General Information – Construction of 147 Multiple-Family units on a vacant parcel on the north 
side of Baldwin Road. An amendment to the previous plan was approved to convert some of 
apartment building (5, 6 & 7) garage spaces into apartments and construct a club house with pool. 
 

Project Status – The site plan was originally submitted and approved in 2019. An amended site 
plan was received July 26, 2022.  The Planning Commission approved the amended site plan with 
on August 11, 2022.  Construction of Phase II is underway and Phase I is awaiting final occupancy 
following a decision on from the Planning Commission regarding a waiver request.  Construction of 
the clubhouse and pool is planned for future Phases (3 and 4).  The applicant’s request for a 
waiver from landscaping buffer requirements to not construct a perimeter privacy fence was denied 
at the November Planning Commission meeting.  The City will request a final as-built site plan prior 
to building plan review given the number of changes to the site with various phases and minor 
changes to exterior improvements. The applicant has submitted a revised performance bond to the 
Planning Department for remaining work items and a Final C of O has been issued for Buildings 
#1-4 and temporary occupancy has been issued for buildings 6 and 7.  
 

9. Woodchips Mixed Use Building – Vacant Lot at Northeast Corner Nepessing/Mason 
General Information – Construction of a new three-story mixed-use building on the vacant lot 
immediately west of Chef G’s with commercial and restaurant uses on the 1st floor and apartments 
on the 2nd and 3rd floors. 
 

Project Status –  Site plans were received on May 3, 2022 and May 26, 2022.  The Planning 
Commission contingently approved the site plan on June 9, 2022 and an extension was approved 
on June 8, 2023 to expire on June 9, 2024. The Planning Department allowed the applicant to 
move forward with building plan submittal while final engineering details on site plans are finalized. 
Revised site plans are still pending.  
 

10. Tommy’s Carwash – Lapeer Commons - Lapeer Rd 
General Information – Construction of a 4,550 sqft building and parking lot for an automatic 
carwash. The applicant is also modifying the Planned Unit Development conceptual plan. 
 

Project Status – The site plan was received Dec. 20, 2021. The Planning Commission contingently 
approved the site plan on Feb. 10, 2022.  Revised site plans were received on March 7 and August 
26, 2022.  The project received site plan extension approval from the Planning Commission to expire 
on February 10, 2024. City staff is waiting for revised site plans and approved sanitary sewer 
easement. The Planning Dept. has received no further communication from the applicant at this time.  
 

11. Beasley – Building Remodel and Parking Lot Improvements – 891 Baldwin Rd 
General Information – Construction of a rear parking lot area, with landscaping, and building 
exterior remodeling to an existing building for a professional office. 
 

Project Status – The site plan was received on November 18, 2021 and received contingent 
approval by the Planning Commission on January 13, 2022.  Final approved plans were distributed 
November 29, 2022. The Zoning Board of Appeals approved a variance for exterior materials on 
April 24, 2023.  Building permit was issued in June 2023 and construction is underway. 



 

 3 

 
 
 
 
12. Popeye’s – Drive-Through Facilities – 1040 S. Lapeer Rd. 
General Information – Construction of two new buildings (a 2,143 sq. ft. building to the north and a 
2,529 sq. ft. to the south) for drive-through facilities and shared parking. 
 

Project Status – The site plan for Phase 1 of the development was received on November 1, 2021.   
On December 9, 2021 the Planning Commission approved a special land use. The site plan 
received contingent approval at the January 13, 2022 Planning Commission meeting.  MDOT 
required changes to the access drive location on M-24. The Planning Commission granted a site 
plan extension until January 13, 2024.  Revised plans were received on March 24, June 14 and 
August 9 and September 27, 2023.  Easement agreements are in process and permits have been 
issued by EGLE.  A demolition permit has also been issued and building plans are under final 
review.  
 

13. Lapeer M-21 Gas Station – 1280 Imlay City Rd 
General Information – Redevelopment of the current site to be a gas station located at 1280 Imlay 
City Road. Half of the building will be demolished while the remaining 3,680 sq. ft. will be used as 
the convenience store. 
 

Project Status – The site plan was received on May 17, 2021. The Planning Commission 
contingently approved the special land use on July 8, 2021. The site plan received contingent site 
plan approval from the Planning Commission on January 13, 2022.  Revised plans were received 
March 30, April 29, July 11, and July 14, 2022.   The final signed and approved site/engineering 
plans have been distributed. Demolition has been completed and construction is underway.  
 

 

 
 

14. Woodbridge Park II – North and West of existing Woodbridge Park Development 
General Information - Construction of 58 additional attached conventional condominium units north 
and west of the existing Woodbridge Park development.  Individual condo units will be constructed 
in two, three and four unit attached structures. 
 

Project Status - The site plan was approved by the Planning Commission on January 10, 2019.  
Revised site plans were received on June 7, 2019 and approved by staff on June 14, 2019.  The 
required performance bond was submitted on March 3, 2020 and final approved/signed were 
distributed March 4, 2020.  Permits were renewed in June 2023.  Construction is underway. 
 
 

Administrative Review Site Plans in Process 
 

1. Jim Riehl’s – 1515 S. Lapeer Rd. – New Front Façade & Building Addition 
General Information – Construction of a new front exterior façade and 2,960 sqft. building addition. 
 

Project Status – The site plan was received on March 23, 2022 and revised plans were received 
June 22 and July 15, 2022.  The final signed and approved site/engineering plans were approved on 
July 21, 2022.  The Building Department has completed review of the building plans and are waiting 
for building permit applications to be submitted. 
 

Projects on Hold: 
 

HTF Hydraulic Tubes & Fittings – 524 McCormick St. 
General Information – Construction of a 3,645 sq. ft. building addition and resurfacing of the 
existing parking lot at the existing site. 
 

Project Status – The site plan was received on Sept. 29, 2020. Site plans were approved on Nov.  
10, 2020. The Building Department has revoked their Temporary Certificate of Occupancy. The 
City is waiting for construction to be completed in accordance with the approved site plan. 



ITEM K-1-6 

     MEMORANDUM             
 

                                           CITY OF LAPEER POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
 
TO:   Mike Womack, City Manager   
FROM: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police  
DATE: 02/13/2024 
RE: Monthly Report; January 1 – January 31, 2024  
 
 In the month of January 2024, our Police Department Officers responded to 1,032 calls for service.  Of these 
1,032 calls for service, 117 or approximately 14% were criminal activity reports of which 33 required 
submissions to the Michigan Incident Crime Reporting System (MICRS).  Our officers made 27 arrests in 
January, 7 felony crimes and 19 arrests were misdemeanor crimes: with 1 arrest for operating under the 
influence of alcohol or drugs.  

This month our officers made 331 traffics stops, issued 41 citations, and gave 290 verbal warnings.  Officers 
also handled 52 vehicle crashes. 

The total for the January overtime was 242.5 hours.  Officers working holidays are the majority at 196.5 
hours.  Other overtime hours were from court appearances, school events, investigations and call-ins.   

The January Code Enforcement total was 58.  The majority of the enforcement was for sidewalk snow 
removal at 35. The remainder of the month included enforcement for signs, blight and inoperable vehicles.     

There were no overdose cases reported in the month of January. 

Sergeants attended the “Failure to Supervise, Liability in Law Enforcement” training course.  Officers also 
trained in several on-line classes in an attempt to reduce training costs.  

Administration worked on several large-scale projects for the Police Department.  We recently introduced 
new software to streamline our department’s work schedule, which is compatible with our payroll system.  
This will make scheduling less time-consuming in the future and will ensure fair practice for overtime call-
ins.  We are also working diligently towards our Accreditation with the MACP.  Administration has been 
reviewing, rewriting and implementing new policies as they get completed. We also introduced our new 
policy software platform, Power DMS.           

 

 

    

      



ITEM K-1-6 

Current Calendar Year Previous Year
Month To Date To Date

Complaints Received and Investigated 915 915 920
District Court Fines Received 911.46$               911.46$                    805.20$                            
OUIL-Cost of Prosecution 250.00$               250.00$                    -$                                 
Charges for Copies of Police Reports 157.90$               157.90$                    105.00$                            

ACCIDENTS:

Fatal 0 0 0
Property Damage 31 31 29
Private Property Damage 19 19 14
Personal Injury 2 2 1

ARRESTS:

Misdemeanor 7 7 12
Felony 19 19 6

HEROIN/OVERDOSE INCIDENTS:

Heroin Possession/Usage 0 0 1
Overdose 0 0 1
Overdose Deaths 0 0 0

Lapeer City Police Department
Monthly Report 
JANUARY 2024

 

 

 

 



Interoffice Memo 
 

 

To: Mike Womack City Manager 
From: Jeff Graham Public Works Director 
Date: February 13, 2024  
RE:         Public Works Monthly Report – January 2024 

 
Department of Public Works Division Summary: 
 
Water/Sewer Utilities Division and Streets Division: 
In January the city had 18 days this month we needed to apply salt and plow to our city 
streets using 191.5 tons of salt. 
 
Other tasks completed in this month include but are not limited to the following items:  
  

• Repaired 6”water main break and valve replacement at Second St. and Adam St.  
• Repaired 12” water main break on Oakdale property. 
• Repaired 6” water main break on N. Monroe St. 
• Sign replacements throughout the city. 
• Tree trimming on local streets.  
• Installed traffic detection on Genesee St.  
• Fixed leaking water valve on DeMille Blvd. 
• Took down Christmas decorations at City Hall. 
• Sanded and painted holding tank on the Vactor. 
• Winterized fire hydrants on Roods Lake Rd. from a structure fire. 
• Pulled heaved sidewalk on Imlay City Rd. to be replaced in the spring. 
• Cold patched city streets. 
• Delivered water sampling results to customers.  
• Assisted Armory with water main installation. 

 
Water/Sewer/ Streets Monthly Routine Task included: 

•  Water sampling all wells (backup water supply) 
•  Water Samples: Bacteria samples, Water Quality testing of distribution system 
•  Operate Wells and well house maintenance. 
•  Meter Reading and Meter Repair 
•  Miss Dig Staking 
•  Rotation of PRV’s in GLWA LA-02 Meter pit 
• Barricade placement Downtown. 
•  Dump maintenance, haul compost. 
•  Brush Pickup 



City of Lapeer 
Page 2 
 

 

•  Barricade placement Downtown. 
 

 
  Wastewater Treatment Plant Summary: 
 
Waste Treatment  

• Check all lift stations 2 times a week with 2 employees. 

• Read meters, record utility and chemical usage. 

• Read, record, and email all weather conditions to the National Weather service. 

• Daily WWTP inspection 

• Weekly equipment greasing 

• Rotate equipment sequences. 

• Empty trash cans, disinfect, clean break room, clean grounds. 

• Week-end work schedule 

• Holiday work schedule 
 

NPDES/IPP 
• Daily Laboratory Analysis 
• Monthly PFAS sampling for WWTP influent, and effluent 

• NPDES monthly Selenium sampling 

• NPDES quarterly Mercury sampling 

• NPDES quarterly Available Cyanide sampling 

• Monitor weekly PFAS sampling via LP&P  

• PFAS file updates 

• Submitted monthly NPDES PFAS POTW effluent monitoring report via MiEnviro 

• Submitted monthly DMR via MiEnviro 
 

Electrical Work 
• Lift station generators checks and repairs. 

• SCADA evaluation 

• Wellhouse #3 project 



City of Lapeer 
Page 3 
 

 

• Replaced light switch at City Hall 

• Replaced media converter at Lashbrook lift station. 
 

Mechanical/Operations 
• Call in for Oregon 1 lift station comm fail. 

• Replaced handle on Oregon 2 lift station cabinet. 

• HVAC estimates 

• Replaced fuse on Influent lube pump. 

• Aqua duct software inquiry for maintenance program 

• Pumped Retention Basin 

• Repair door closers. 
 
Miscellaneous 
 

• Snow removal WWTP and lift stations 

• Inspect and maintain Oakdale bar screen. 
 
Safety/Training 

• IT computer training 

• Toby Fader DOT Physical 
 

Bio-Solids Disposal Status /Loads Hauled out. 
• 2-North tanks hold 474,980 gallons /we have 47,500 gallons in storage 

• 2-south tanks hold 430,120 gallons/we have 387,108 gallons in storage 

• Sufficient storage space until Spring land application 
 

    
  



















MEDICAL MARIHUANA LICENSES 
PROVISIONING CENTER - GROWER – PROCESSOR –  

SECURE TRANSPORTER – SAFETY COMPLIANCE FACILITY 
Approved Licenses:              Updated:  January 2024 

Applicant Name DBA Address License Status 
PROVISIONING CENTERS     
FB Lapeer PRV, LLC The Jazz Club Center 1333 Imlay City Road Provisional App:  Exp 04-26-24 
DNVK Lapeer Inc The Pier Provisioning Center 2401 W Genesee St Facility App:  Exp 06-11-24 
The Pure Lapeer, LLC Pure Lapeer 1330 Imlay City Road Units C&D Facility App:  Exp 06-21-24 
TRC Lapeer LLC The ReLeaf Center of Lapeer 200 E Genesee St Facility App:  Exp 10-23-24 
Alternative RX, LLC Xplore Cannabis 824 S Main Street Facility App:  Exp 10-30-24 
Ox Tail, Inc. Heads 111 W Genesee St Facility App:  Exp 11-19-24 
SPMI LLC Shango Lapeer 224 E Genesee St Facility App:  Exp 12-12-24 
     
GROWER     
Green Thumb Growers Green Thumb Growers 840 Whitney Prov – Class A App:  Exp 04-24-24 
Ka Ulu Ana LLC #1 Ka Ulu Ana LLC 244 S Court Street Facility  – Class C App:  Exp 08-04-24 
 
PROCESSOR     
Berry Green Management, Inc. Berry Green Management, Inc 1330 Imlay City Road Facility App:  Exp 08-28-24 
Northwest Confections   

Michigan LLC WYLD 525 S. Court Street, Suite 110 Facility App:  Exp 10-07-24 
Berry Green Management, Inc Berry Green Management, Inc 1356 Imlay City Road Facility App:  Exp 12-11-24 
     
 
SECURE TRANSPORTER 

    

None.     
SAFETY COMPLIANCE 

FACILITY 
    

None.     
  



ADULT USE MARIHUANA LICENSES 
PROVISIONING CENTER – GROWER – PROCESSOR –  

SECURE TRANSPORTER – SAFETY COMPLIANCE FACILITY 
Approved Licenses:              Updated:  January 2024 

Applicant Name DBA Address License Status 
     
PROVISIONING CENTERS     
DNVK Lapeer Inc The Pier Provisioning Center 2401 W Genesee St Facility App: Exp 11-19-24 
The Pure Lapeer, LLC Pure Lapeer 1330 Imlay City Road Units C&D Facility App: Exp 12-03-24 
TRC Lapeer LLC The ReLeaf Center of Lapeer 200 E Genesee St Facility App: Exp 12-03-24 
Ox Tail, Inc. Heads 111 W Genesee St Facility App: Exp 12-16-24 
SPMI, LLC Shango Lapeer 224 E. Genesee St Facility App: Exp 12-15-24 
Alternative RX Xplore  824 S. Main St. Facility App: Exp 12-21-24 
     
GROWER     
Old School Organics, LLC Old School Organics, LLC 350 County Center Street Facility  – Class C App: Exp 04-08-24 
Farmboyz, LLC  1428 Imlay City Road Prov – Class B App: Exp 07-30-24 
Ka Ulu Ana LLC #1  244 S. Court St Facility  – Class C App: Exp 10-15-24 
Ka Ulu Ana LLC #2  244 S. Court St Facility  – Class C App: Exp 10-15-24 
Fresh Water Gardens, LLC  39 W. Genesee Prov – Class C App: Exp 12-16-24 
SDRK Group, LLC  207 S. Saginaw St. Facility  – Class C App: Exp 12-18-24 
SDRK Group, LLC  207 S. Saginaw St. Facility  – Class C App: Exp 12-18-24 
     
PROCESSOR     
Berry Green Management, Inc. Berry Green Management, Inc 1330 Imlay City Rd, Ste F-G-H Facility App:  Exp 08-28-24 
Ka Ulu Ana, LLC  244 S. Court St Facility App:  Exp 09-27-24 
Northwest Confections Michigan  WYLD 525 S. Court Street, Suite 110 Facility App:  Exp 10-07-24 
Berry Green Management   1356 Imlay City Road Facility App:  Exp 01-05-25 
Atwater Management LLC Culture Complex 525 S. Court St., Suite 120 Facility App:  Exp 01-25-25 
     
SECURE TRANSPORTER     
None.     
SAFETY COMPLIANCE FACILITY    
None.     

 



CITY OF LAPEER, 576 LIBERTY PARK, LAPEER, LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN 48446 
2024 MEETING DATES 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.261 et. Seq., notice is hereby given that every meeting of the City Council, Boards, Authorities and Commissions of the 
City of Lapeer shall be open to the public.  Notice is further given that the following City Council, Boards, Authorities and Commissions are regular meeting dates for 2024.  A 
public notice of each special or rescheduled meeting will be posted at least 18 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 

Board/Commission Location Time January February March April May June July August September October November December 
City Commission Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 2, 16 5, 20 4, 18 1, 15 6, 20 3, 17 1, 15 5, 19 3, 16 7, 21 4, 18 2, 16 

1st & 3rd Monday   of each Month 
Cemetery Board 

3rd Thursday of Oct 
Mt. Hope Cemetery 
Building 

2:00 P.M. -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 17 -- -- 

Downtown Development 
 Authority 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M. 24 28 27 24 22 26 24 28 25 23 27 25 

4th Wednesday   of each Month 
Economic Development Corp 
(EDC) & Tax Increment 
Finance Auth (TIFA) 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M. 
10 14 13 10 8 12 10 14 11 9 13 11 

2nd Wednesday   As needed 
Housing Commission 

3rd Thursday 
2nd Floor 
Conference Room 

4:00 P.M. 18 15 21 18 16 20 18 15 19 17 21 19 

 of each Month 
Local Development Finance 
Authority (LDFA) 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M 5 4 3 3 

1st Tuesday March/June/Sept/ Dec as Needed 
Park Board -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 6 -- 
Planning Commission Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 11 8 14 11 9 13 11 8 12 10 14 12 

2nd Thursday of each Month 
Zoning Board of Appeals Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 22 26 25 22 27 24 22 26 23 28 25 23 

4th Monday of each Month 

Address of the above locations are as follows: 
Commission Chambers:    City Hall, 576 Liberty Park 
Mt. Hope Cemetery:          1230 Park Street 

Romona Sanchez, CMC 
City Clerk 

City of Lapeer  
576 Liberty Park, Lapeer  
Lapeer County, Michigan  48446   (810) 664-5231 

N-1



MAT. TRANS.   

 

To: City Commission 
Date: February 14, 2024 
RE: Material Transmittals 

1. Great Lakes Water Authority – Proposed FY 2025 charges.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 






























	02-20-2024 City Commission Agenda
	A-1 Minutes 02-05-2024 Regular
	B-2 Public Comment- Lapeer Bike Night
	C-1 SEA East Lapeer Farmers Market 2024
	D-1 Bill Listing 02-20-2024
	G-1 Ord Amend Ch 15-Adopt
	G-2 RES Optimist Beer Tent - Lapeer Days
	G-3 M-24 Tunnel Connection - TAP Grant Resolution
	H-1 Ribbon Policy draft
	H-2 Special Event Application (1-8)
	J- Boards & Commissions
	K-1 Monthly Reports 02-20-24
	N-1 2024  Bds & Comm Meeting Dates
	Mat Trans 02-20-2024



